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Report of the Directors of the managing agent 
The Directors of the managing agent present their report and accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021 under UK 

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP). This report covers Tokio Marine Kiln Catastrophe Syndicate 557, managed 

by Tokio Marine Kiln Syndicates Limited. The managing agency’s ultimate parent is Tokio Marine Holdings, Inc., the head 

office of which is in Japan. 

 

The annual report for the managed syndicate is prepared using the annual basis of accounting as required by Statutory 

Instrument No. 1950 of 2008, the Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 

2008. 

 

Separate underwriting year accounts for the 2019 year of account are also included in this report. 

 

Principal activity 

The principal activity of the syndicate is to write a quota share reinsurance of the business of Syndicate 510’s and 

Syndicate 1880’s reinsurance divisions. 

 

Results 

The result for the 2021 calendar year is a loss of £0.8 million (2020: loss of £9.4 million). The syndicate’s key financial 

performance indicators during the year were as follows: 

 

 

 2021 

£m 

 2020 

£m 

Gross written premium  25.4  25.8 

Net earned premium  18.4  21.9 

Loss for the financial year  (0.8)  (9.4) 

Investment return  (0.1)  0.8 

Claims ratio(1)  87.0%  137.3% 

Combined ratio(2)  102.8%  149.0% 
(1)Claims ratio - Total of net incurred claims as a percentage of net earned premium 
(2)Combined ratio - Total of net incurred claims, net acquisition costs and operating expenses as a percentage of net earned premium 

 

Review of the business 

The syndicate writes a quota share reinsurance of Syndicate 510 and Syndicate 1880’s Reinsurance divisions, primarily 

comprising a portfolio of US and international property catastrophe business. 

 

The syndicate produced a loss of £0.8 million (2020: loss of £9.4 million) and reported a combined ratio of 102.8% (2020: 

149.0%). The claims ratio of 87.0% (2020: 137.3%) reflects the high level of catastrophe activity during the year with 

losses from natural weather-related events, most notably Hurricane Ida, Winter Storm Uri, the European floods, and the 

Kentucky Tornadoes. 

 

The reduction in written premium was due to a number of non-renewals where rate increases were deemed insufficient 

to deliver planned hurdle rates. There was also a decrease in the cession percentage of the syndicate’s inwards quota 

share reinsurance treaty, which reduced to 28% for the 2021 year of account (2020 year of account: 30%).  

 

The syndicate reported an investment loss of £0.1 million (2020: £0.8 million gain) equating to a negative return of 0.3% 

(2020: 2.4% gain). 

 

2019 underwriting year of account 

The syndicate made a 2019 closing year profit of £0.6 million (before members’ agents fees) on allocated capacity of 

£32.3 million (return on capacity 1.9%) after taking account of operating expenses, foreign exchange, Lloyd’s expenses 

and investment income. 

 

The Syndicate was impacted by COVID-19 losses through its exposure to business interruption risk within Syndicate 510’s 

US property excess of loss account. The 2019 Atlantic hurricane season also registered above-average activity, albeit 

many of the natural weather events were weak and short-lived, with Storm Dorian being the only notable loss for the 

Syndicate. These losses were offset by favourable back year reserve releases and relatively benign experience across the 

remainder of the portfolio. 
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2022 Outlook 

The syndicate will continue to write its quota share of Syndicate 510’s and Syndicate 1880’s Reinsurance divisions, which 

is primarily focussed on US and international property catastrophe reinsurance. For the 2022 year of account the syndicate 

will maintain a net cession of 28%. 

 

Market capacity in the reinsurance space is expected to tighten as a result of reduced risk appetite, creating new 

opportunities for growth. The rating environment has started to reflect recent elevated catastrophe activity and we are 

well-positioned to take advantage of the hardening market.  

 

Operational activities 

The COVID-19 pandemic is impacting the operational activities of the syndicate, however, the Directors consider the 

negative implications on operations to be low. TMK introduced a dynamic working policy which allow employees to 

determine a mix between office and remote working meeting the mutual needs of the business and its employees. 

 

Principal risks & uncertainties 

Our business model remains consistent: we are specialist underwriters, providing a wide variety of products tailored to 

our clients’ changing risk profiles. This is supported by a comprehensive, enterprise-wide framework for the management 

of risk across the whole of Tokio Marine Kiln. We focus largely on specialist lines of insurance and reinsurance business 

where we know that a loss has occurred relatively quickly, and so are able to make more immediate reliable estimates 

regarding the extent of the losses we might expect. We are substantially exposed to catastrophe related business and 

have detailed knowledge of the risks we underwrite. 

 

It is our policy to confine risk exposure primarily to core areas of expertise: the underwriting of specialist insurance and 

reinsurance risks. This approach means that we are prudent in financial risk management, such as investment 

management and reserving. This allows us to protect our capital and focus our risk appetite on underwriting. 

 

Capital management 

Capital framework at Lloyd’s 

The Society of Lloyd’s (Lloyd’s) is a regulated undertaking and subject to supervision by the Prudential Regulatory 

Authority (PRA) under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, and in accordance with Solvency II. 

 

Within this supervisory framework, Lloyd’s applies capital requirements at member level and centrally to ensure that 

Lloyd’s complies with Solvency II requirements, and beyond that to meet its own financial strength, licence and ratings 

objectives. 

 

Although, as described below, Lloyd’s capital setting processes use a capital requirement set at syndicate level as a 

starting point, the requirement to meet Lloyd’s capital requirements apply at member level only, not at a syndicate level. 

Accordingly, the capital requirement at syndicate level is not disclosed in these report and accounts. 

 

Lloyd’s capital setting process 

In order to meet Lloyd’s requirements, each syndicate is required to calculate its Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) for 

the prospective underwriting year. This amount must be sufficient to cover a 1 in 200-year loss, reflecting uncertainty in 

the ultimate run-off of underwriting liabilities (SCR ‘to ultimate’). The syndicate must also calculate its SCR at the same 

confidence level but reflecting uncertainty over a one-year time horizon (one-year SCR) for Lloyd’s to use in meeting 

Solvency II requirements. The SCRs of each syndicate are subject to review by Lloyd’s and approval by the Lloyd’s Capital 

and Planning Group. 

 

A syndicate may be supported by one or more underwriting members of Lloyd’s. Each member is liable for its own share 

of underwriting liabilities on the syndicate(s) on which it is participating but not other members’ shares. Accordingly, 

the capital requirements that Lloyd’s set for each member operate on a similar basis. Each members’ total capital 

requirement is therefore determined by the share of each syndicate’s SCR ‘to ultimate’ on which they participate. 

Where a member participates on more than one syndicate, a credit for diversification is provided to reflect the spread 

of risk, but consistent with determining an SCR which reflects the capital requirement to cover a 1 in 200 loss ‘to 

ultimate’ for that member. Over and above this, Lloyd’s applies a capital uplift to the members’ capital requirement, 

known as the Economic Capital Assessment (ECA). The purpose of this uplift, which is a Lloyd’s rather than Solvency 

II requirement, is to meet Lloyd’s financial strength, licence and ratings objectives. 

 

Provision of capital by members 

Each member may provide capital to meet its ECA either through assets held in trust by Lloyd’s specifically for that 

member (Funds at Lloyd’s) or as the members’ share of the members’ balances on each syndicate on which it participates. 
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Accordingly, all of the assets less liabilities of the syndicate, as represented in the members’ balances reported on the 

respective balance sheets, represent resources available to meet members’ and Lloyd’s capital requirements. The Lloyd’s 

market-wide capital uplift applied for 2021 to derive the ECA is 35% (2020: 35%) of the members’ SCR ‘to ultimate’. 

 

Capital allocation 

We have an approved internal model which is used to calculate capital requirements, allocate capital to business lines and 

risk categories and assess the value of different business and reinsurance strategies. The calculations are based upon 

sophisticated mathematical models that reflect the key risks in the business, allowing for the probability of occurrence, 

the potential impact should losses occur and the interactions between the different risk types. 

 

The results of the modelling confirm that the majority of capital is required to support insurance risk. 

 

Risk management and risk appetite 

We have a comprehensive, enterprise-wide risk management framework in place for the management of risk across the 

whole of TMK. A key element of this is the risk appetite framework which is approved by the Board each year and lays 

out the agreed appetite for each area of risk the business is exposed to. 

 

The risk appetite framework ensures that risk taking is aligned to the business strategy by including a set of risk 

preferences. These are strategic choices taken by the business to deliver the best result to its stakeholders. These 

preferences change over time as the strategy develops, ensuring we remain relevant to our clients, whilst adapting to 

market conditions. 

 

As a business, we are exposed to a number of types of risk and have developed a strategy for categorising, managing 

and reporting these different risks. This high-level categorisation is called the TMK Risk Universe. We define the risk 

universe as ‘the complete view of all possible types of risk that the firm may face, reflecting the risk profile of the business’. 

The universe includes risks that could positively or negatively impact the business. 

 

TMK’s risks are included in the TMK risk register and form part of the regular risk assessment process, facilitated by the 

Risk Management team. Risks are reported on a quarterly basis as part of the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) 

process to the Risk, Capital & Compliance Committee. 

 

Insurance risk 

This is the risk of loss arising from the inherent uncertainties as to the occurrence, amount and timing of insurance 

liabilities. 

 

Insurance risk is sub-divided into several categories which include underwriting risk, reinsurance risk and reserving risk. 

 

Due to the cyclical nature of insurance business, there is a risk that future earnings are lower or more volatile than 

expected with fluctuations in capacity, competition and the frequency and severity of losses, as a result of both man-

made and natural disasters. 

 

Underwriting risk 

This is the risk arising from fluctuations in the frequency and severity of financial losses incurred as a result of the 

acceptance of the insurance portfolio of business. 

 

Underwriting risk is managed by agreeing the syndicate’s appetite annually through the risk appetite framework and the 

business plan, which sets out targets for volumes, pricing, line sizes and retention by class of business. Volume and price 

performance is monitored against the syndicate business plan monthly, and all of the components of the insurance result 

and risk appetite quarterly. Catastrophe modelling software is used to model maximum probable losses from catastrophe-

exposed business and as part of the Realistic Disaster Scenario (RDS) process. We have adopted a cyber aggregate 

monitoring tool to manage the growing exposures in this area. 

 

As an underwriter of complex and specialist insurance business, ensuring compliance with licencing and other regulatory 

requirements is a priority for Tokio Marine Kiln. This is overseen by the Product and Underwriting Governance Committee 

(PUGC). The PUGC also oversees adherence to our internal standards for delegated authority arrangements. 

 

Reinsurance risk 

This is the risk that reinsurance purchased to protect the gross account does not respond as intended due to, inter alia: 

mismatch with gross losses; poorly worded contracts; reinsurer counterparty risk; or exhaustion of reinsurance limits. 

The risk is heightened if there is a lack of reinsurance or retrocession availability in the market. 
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Reinsurance is used to protect capital against underwriting risk volatility, either as a result of large catastrophes or from 

the severity of losses on individual policies. 

 

Reserving risk 

This is the risk of loss arising from claims reserves already in the balance sheet being understated, i.e. the risk that 

reserves are inadequate due to the inherent uncertainty of knowing the ultimate timing and quantum of liabilities incurred. 

 

Claims provisions represent estimates, based on both the underwriters’ and claim managers’ informed knowledge and 

judgement and on the Internal Reserving Actuary’s statistical projections, of the expectation of the ultimate settlement 

and administration costs of claims incurred. A variety of estimation techniques are used, generally based upon statistical 

analyses of historical loss development patterns, to assist in the establishment of appropriate claims reserves. 

 

In addition, the estimates are subject to independent review by external actuaries, who sign an annual Statement of 

Actuarial Opinion on the sufficiency of the reserves for the syndicate. Our policy is to reserve on a consistent basis with a 

reasonable margin for prudence. Claims run-off tables are used to monitor the history of reserve adequacy, and these 

show a trend of predominantly positive run-off since they were first prepared in 2001. 

 

Credit risk 

This is the risk of loss if another party fails to meet its financial obligations, including failure to meet them in a timely 

manner. 

 

We are exposed to three types of credit risk: reinsurer credit risk; broker credit risk; and investment credit risk. Credit 

exposure and aggregate exposure to reinsurers are managed by the Outwards Reinsurance team. It assesses all new 

reinsurers before business is placed with them, and it monitors the credit ratings of all reinsurers used. The performance 

of premium debtors from brokers is monitored regularly. The Investment Committee regularly tracks and reviews our 

investment portfolio, which is outsourced to investment managers. 

 

Market risk 

This is the risk that arises from fluctuations in values of, or income from assets, interest rates or exchange rates.  

Investments are held as a result of underwriting activities either in premium trust funds or as capital support. The 

investment policy is set to protect the capital, and not to manage it as a separate profit centre. Funds managed by our 

investment managers are subject to set guidelines, and the on-going investment strategy and investment objectives that 

are agreed by the Investment Committee. These include the requirement to comply with the prudent person principle as 

outlined in the Solvency II Directive text. Additionally, we meet regularly with our fund managers to review performance. 

 

We regularly review our balance of assets and liabilities. The syndicate maintains a diversified investment portfolio to 

restrict the concentration of assets. 

 

Various external factors can impact our market/investment risk position, and these are assessed via the ORSA process. 

 

Liquidity risk 

This is the risk of the syndicates being unable to meet liabilities in a timely manner due to the lack of liquid resources. 

 

To mitigate liquidity risk, the treasury team reviews syndicate cash flow projections quarterly, and also stress tests them 

against RDSs. The syndicates also have the ability to make cash calls on members in order to manage liquidity. 

 

Climate risk 

The Board is unanimous in its recognition of the risks posed by climate change to the business, and the need for a robust 

risk management response which effectively identifies, measures, monitors, manages and reports those risks, both within 

the company and to its external stakeholders. During 2020/21 the Risk Management Team have worked closely with the 

Board, both collectively and with individuals, to develop TMK’s climate related risk appetites and to ensure these are 

correctly integrated within our overarching risk management framework. Our climate risk appetites take into consideration 

the Tokio Marine Group Sustainability strategy and the Lloyd’s ESG strategy. 

 

The evaluation of climate risk focuses on examination of each risk category identified within climate risks (Physical, 

Transition, Reputational and Strategic), assessing the materiality of each risk across the business planning horizon and 

for the longer term. We consider climate risk to be a transverse risk, by which we mean that elements of the climate risk 

categories will manifest across the traditional components of the risk. For example, the physical risk component of climate 

risk will manifest within the components of insurance risk, market risk, operational risk and so on. 

 

As part of the PRA’s 2021 Climate Biennial Exploratory Scenario (CBES), we have performed investigations of the 

magnitude of financial exposures at TMK to climate-related risks. The exercise included analysis of: (i) physical risk 



 

Tokio Marine Kiln Catastrophe Syndicate 557 Report and accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021 9 

changes as temperatures rise, (ii) transition risks as the global economy shifts to low carbon, and (iii) litigation risks that 

consider TMK’s relevant wordings in the Liability book and the extent to which coverage is provided or clearly excluded. 

 

We are participating in the second round of the CBES exercise, which will further explore and develop our understanding 

of the risks and development of our strategic response to them. We expect to receive feedback from the PRA in 2022. We 

will incorporate this into our strategic response to climate risks. 

 

Physical risk 

Physical risks of increasing windstorm damage factors have been identified as the key increased threat over the long 

term. TMK analysis has identified a broad consensus in climate models regarding the increase in severity of windstorms 

(alongside little consensus on any increase in windstorm frequency). With additional severity, perils such as inland flooding 

are likely to lead to increased losses for our natural catastrophe exposed lines of business, as exemplified by Hurricane 

Harvey in 2017. This may lead to certain customers being uninsurable in the long term if the risk of windstorm damage 

(e.g. flood) becomes too significant. This is likely to be especially material for the property and reinsurance lines. Similar 

effects may be felt on invested assets, particularly (for example) municipal bonds in affected regions. 

 

In operational terms, TMKS does not see its business strategy as being significantly affected by the physical risks of 

climate change. There is a minor flood risk owing to TMKS’ office position in the City of London, but we do not own the 

asset and have demonstrated an ability to work effectively from home during COVID-19. 

 

Transition risk 

Transition risks from climate change are likely to affect the syndicate’s performance through the global adjustment to a 

low carbon economy. This is likely to have effects on the returns that we receive from certain assets, particularly those 

that require high carbon emissions in their existing business model. An exercise has taken place to highlight the materiality 

of transition risks to the syndicate’s underwriting divisions. This work has led to limitations on our underwriting of high 

transition risk industries and the development of an ESG (Environmental, social and governance) lens to our investment 

strategy. 

 

Transition risks from climate change are also noted to provide a significant opportunity to the business. As sectors 

transition to low carbon, they will need to adopt new technologies which will themselves need to be insured. Furthermore, 

if we are able to align ourselves to customers that are effectively transitioning rather than those that are not, we are 

likely to have a more successful customer base in the medium to long term.  

 

TMK use two asset managers, BlackRock and New England Asset Management to manage the investment portfolios of the 

syndicate, subject to certain restrictions expressed in investment guidelines. The portfolios predominantly consist of short-

dated, investment grade, government and corporate bonds, absolute return fixed income bond funds and no equities. The 

implications of climate change to these short-dated, investment grade investments (where the average duration is around 

2 years), is likely to be minimal. However, appropriate ESG rating and KPIs are being generated by our external asset 

managers and monitored and discussed on a quarterly basis. 

 

The opportunities that have been identified through transition risk evaluation has led to action to identify underwriting 

opportunities associated with green technology development. 

 

Litigation risk 

Litigation risks may arise from lawsuits regarding organisations’ and individuals’ effects on the climate. TMK is developing 

its understanding of these litigation risks and of any potential exposure to our business. This includes monitoring of the 

outcomes of external litigation cases, and internal scenario analysis.   

 

Reputational risk 

Reputational risk has been considered in the context of key stakeholders to the TMKS business, including our customers, 

current and future employees, and the wider society that we are engaged in. Given the varied stakeholder interests and 

the difficulty in quantifying such a risk, we undertook a reputational risk scenario test in the 2021 Annual ORSA Report, 

reported to the TMKS Board. The scenario explored the varied impacts should TMK fall out of line with other market 

competitors and become known as an insurer of high carbon emitting projects. 

 

We aim to maintain our reputation as a ‘Good Company’ by acting ethically and responsibly in all our business dealings, 

and by actively monitoring our reputation with customers, regulators (PRA, FCA and Lloyd’s), investors and members’ 

agents, brokers, and staff, across all our entities, taking early action to address any reputational issues. The 

representatives from each of HR, Head Office, Communications, and Compliance explicitly consider and refer to climate 

when providing their justifications of their RAG ratings considering TMK’s reputation with key stakeholders. This supports 

embedding of climate considerations within the existing Reputational Risk Appetite scoring. 
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Strategic risk 

These evaluations of climate implications have led to strategic action to manage our risks. A limit has been introduced for 

underwriting premium in high transition risk areas, while actions have been identified to improve our understanding of 

the physical risks of climate change to our underwriting liabilities through scenario testing. Reputational risk evaluation 

has led to action to manage our underwriting of high emission products, while a developed understanding of transition 

risks has led to the introduction of a limits of certain assets, as well as a cessation of investing in certain high emission 

sectors, e.g. coal, new Arctic energy exploration and oil sands. 

 

Risk appetites are now agreed and metrics reported to both the ESG Committee and Risk, Capital and Compliance 

Committee (RCCC) quarterly. These metrics form a key part of measuring TMK’s position against climate-related issues, 

helping to drive action toward managing and lowering our exposure to the downside risks associated with climate change.   

 

Operational risk 

This is the risk that errors caused by people, processes or systems lead to losses to the managed syndicate. 

 

We seek to manage this risk by the recruitment of high calibre staff and providing them with ongoing, high quality training. 

Operational risk forms a significant part of TMK’s risk register. Risks are reviewed on a regular basis with departmental 

heads responsible for identifying, assessing and controlling operational risks effectively, as well as attesting to the 

effectiveness of these controls on a regular basis. This forms the Risk, Control and Self-Assessment (RCSA) process at 

Tokio Marine Kiln, supported by the Risk Management team who independently assess key risks and controls on a regular 

basis. 

 

There is a strong risk reporting and risk governance system in place to ensure effective risk management of operational 

risk. The Risk, Capital & Compliance Committee reviews the most material elements of the operational risk profile 

quarterly, in line with our risk management framework. Particular attention is paid to how the risks from cyber security 

threats are managed by the Information Security Group. 

 

Tokio Marine Kiln Syndicates Limited is aware of its fiduciary responsibilities to capital providers across each of its four 

syndicates and is careful to ensure equity between them. As we operate with an integrated underwriting function, we 

manage potential conflicts of interest between capital providers using Tokio Marine Kiln’s Conflicts Committee. 

 

Regulatory risk 

This is the risk of loss owing to a breach of regulatory requirements or failure to respond to regulatory change. 

 

The managing agent is required to comply with the requirements of the FCA, PRA and Lloyd’s, including those imposed 

on the Lloyd’s market by overseas regulators, particularly in respect of US Situs business. The Compliance function is 

responsible for monitoring compliance with regulation and monitoring of regulatory change. The Compliance framework 

outlines the broad regulatory and compliance structure that applies to all staff. 

 

The nature of its business exposes the managing agent to controls and sanctions which regulate international trade. 

Processes and controls are in place to screen and monitor transactions against relevant requirements to ensure 

compliance with them. 

 

Conduct risk 

This is an important element of regulatory risk and is the risk of financial and/or service detriment which adversely affects 

our customers due to failings in the customer value chain. 

 

Our conduct objective is to build, maintain and enjoy long-term relationships with our customers whether they be held 

directly or indirectly via a third party. This culture of partnership is fundamental to our dealings with our customers, and 

comes regardless of the complexity of the risk, the sophistication of the buyer, or the length of the supply chain to the 

end customer. 

 

The conduct objective is owned by the Board and cascaded throughout the organisation. It is central in achieving delivery 

of the six consumer outcomes (as set out by the FCA), which are at the heart of our business. 

 

The Board aims to embed a culture, from the top down, where the conduct risk arising from the execution of the business 

plan and strategy is appropriately monitored and managed to ensure good outcomes for all our customers. The 

management of conduct risk applies to all business, regardless of product lines and customer types, across both open 

market and delegated underwriting and is achieved through the application of the conduct risk framework. The framework 

is applied in a proportionate, risk-based way which takes account of the different inherent conduct risk across products, 

distribution and customer types. 
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The underwriters, with the support of all teams across Tokio Marine Kiln, take day-to-day ownership of conduct risk as 

they are the ones empowered to make decisions which commit us to relationships with our customers and business 

partners. Conduct risk and our treatment of customers is managed and monitored by the PUGC, a sub-committee of the 

Risk, Capital and Compliance Committee. 

 

Reputational risk 

This is the risk that negative publicity regarding an institution’s business practices will lead to a loss of revenue or litigation. 

 

In the modern digital era, reputational risk and the subsequent threat to our strong brand is becoming more significant. 

Loss of confidence from customers, regulators or capital providers could cause long-term harm to the business. 

 

In light of this, all staff are made aware of their responsibilities to clients and other stakeholders. 

 

Strategic risk 

Strategic risk refers to the risk associated with the achievement of the business’ strategic objectives. A key element of 

strategic risk is the risk of making poor business decisions in the context of the internal and external market environment 

in which we operate. 

 

Strategic risk is managed via the Board which is ultimately responsible for setting and monitoring our strategic direction. 

Below the Board, various sub-committees discuss and challenge the businesses strategy. 

 

Emerging risk 

We define an emerging risk as an issue that is perceived to be potentially significant, but which may not be fully understood 

or allowed for in insurance terms and conditions, pricing, reserving or capital setting, and may relate to issues which are 

changing rapidly or are uncertain.  

 

We are committed to the continual research and identification of emerging risks and actively undertake research 

independently, and via market working groups. Emerging risk analysis is included in the Tokio Marine Kiln ORSA process 

with annual and where relevant, quarterly updates. Through the effective management of emerging risks, we are able to 

identify external trends and threats, and improve risk selection and knowledge of future risk exposures. Emerging risks 

may present both threats and opportunities to the business and, as we have done in the past, we will readily capitalise 

on identified opportunities in this area. 

 

Directors 

The Directors of the managing agent who served during the year ended 31 December 2021, as well as any subsequent 

changes, are listed under the section ‘Directors, active underwriter and administration’. 

 

Post balance sheet events  

These are discussed in note 18 of the annual accounts. 

 

Disclosure of information to the auditors 

As far as each person who was a Director of the managing agent at the date of approving this report is aware, there is 

no relevant audit information, which is information needed by the auditors in connection with its report, of which the 

auditors are unaware. Having made enquiries of fellow Directors of the managing agent and the syndicates’ auditors, each 

Director has taken all the steps that they are obliged to take as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any 

relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information. 

 

Reappointment of auditors 

The Board approved the reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors for the current year and on an ongoing 

basis for the managed syndicates, managing agent and other Tokio Marine Kiln Group entities. 
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Syndicate annual general meeting 

In accordance with the Syndicate Meetings (Amendment No. 1) Byelaw (No. 18 of 2000) the managing agent does not 

propose holding a syndicate annual meeting this year; objections to this proposal or the intention to reappoint the auditors 

for a further 12 months can be made by syndicate members in writing to the Company Secretary within 21 days of this 

notice. 

 

Approved by the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

B T Irick  

Chief Executive Officer 

Tokio Marine Kiln Syndicates Limited 

3 March 2022  
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Statement of managing agent’s responsibilities 
The managing agent is responsible for preparing the syndicate annual report and annual accounts in accordance with 

applicable law and regulations. 

 

The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 (‘2008 Regulations’) 

requires the managing agent to prepare syndicate annual accounts for each syndicate at 31 December each year, in 

accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and 

applicable law). The annual accounts are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the syndicate 

as at that date and of its profit or loss for that year. 

 

In preparing the syndicates’ annual accounts, the managing agent is required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

• state whether applicable United Kingdom accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material 

departures disclosed and explained in the annual accounts; and 

• prepare the annual accounts on the going concern basis for each syndicate unless it is intended for the syndicate to 

cease operations, or it has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

The managing agent is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any 

time the financial position of each syndicate and enable it to ensure that the syndicate annual accounts comply with the 

2008 Regulations. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of each syndicate and hence for taking reasonable 

steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

The managing agent is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included 

on its website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements 

may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

 

The Directors of the managing agent confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the 

syndicate annual accounts. 
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Syndicate 557 
 

Report on the audit of the syndicate annual accounts 
 

Opinion 
In our opinion, 557’s syndicate annual accounts: 
 

● give a true and fair view of the state of the syndicate’s affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of its loss and cash 

flows for the year then ended; 

● have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United 

Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 

Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law); and 

● have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate 

and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008.  

 
We have audited the syndicate annual accounts included within the Report and Accounts (the “Annual Report”), which 
comprise: the Balance sheet: assets and the Balance sheet: liabilities as at 31 December 2021; the Profit and loss: 
technical account - general business, the Profit and loss: non-technical account, the Statement of cash flows, and the 
Statement of changes in members’ balances for the year then ended; and the notes to the syndicate annual accounts, 
which include a description of the significant accounting policies. 
 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”), and The Insurance 
Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 and other applicable law. Our 
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the syndicate annual 
accounts section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.  
 
Independence 
We remained independent of the syndicate in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the syndicate annual accounts in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, as applicable to other entities of 
public interest, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  
 
To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard were 
not provided. 
 
Other than those disclosed in note 4, we have provided no non-audit services to the syndicate in the period under audit. 
 

Conclusions relating to going concern 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions 
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the syndicate’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
period of at least twelve months from when the syndicate annual accounts are authorised for issue. 
 
In auditing the syndicate annual accounts, we have concluded that the Managing Agent’s use of the going concern basis 

of accounting in the preparation of the syndicate annual accounts is appropriate. 
 
However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the 
syndicate's ability to continue as a going concern. 
 
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Managing Agent with respect to going concern are described in the 
relevant sections of this report. 
 

Reporting on other information 
The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the syndicate annual accounts and 
our auditors’ report thereon. The Managing Agent is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the syndicate 
annual accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to 
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the syndicate annual accounts, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the syndicate annual accounts or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material 
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material 
misstatement of the syndicate annual accounts or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities. 
 
With respect to the Report of the Directors of the managing agent, we also considered whether the disclosures required 
by The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 have been included. 
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Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and 
Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below. 
 
Managing Agent’s Report 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Managing Agent’s 
Report for the year ended 31 December 2021 is consistent with the syndicate annual accounts and has been prepared in 
accordance with applicable legal requirements. 
 
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the syndicate and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we 
did not identify any material misstatements in the Managing Agent’s Report.  
 

Responsibilities for the syndicate annual accounts and the audit 
 
Responsibilities of the Managing Agent for the syndicate annual accounts 
As explained more fully in the Statement of managing agent’s responsibilities, the Managing Agent is responsible for the 
preparation of the syndicate annual accounts in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that 
they give a true and fair view. The Managing Agent is also responsible for such internal control as they determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of syndicate annual accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the syndicate annual accounts, the Managing Agent is responsible for assessing the syndicate’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless it is intended for the syndicate to cease operations, or it has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the syndicate annual accounts 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the syndicate annual accounts as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these syndicate annual accounts. 
 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line 
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The 
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below. 

Based on our understanding of the syndicate and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with 
laws and regulations related to breaches of UK and European regulatory principles, such as those governed by the 
Prudential Regulation Authority and the Financial Conduct Authority, and those regulations set by the Council of Lloyd’s, 
and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the syndicate annual accounts. 
We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the syndicate annual accounts such as The 
Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008. We evaluated management’s 
incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the syndicate annual accounts (including the risk of override 
of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to the posting of inappropriate journals and management 
bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included: 

● Discussions with management, internal audit and the risk and compliance functions, including consideration of 

known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulation and fraud. 

● Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates, in 

particular in relation to valuation of the IBNR component of claims outstanding and estimated premium income. 

● Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations 

impacting revenue, journals posted by senior management and/or those posted late in the year end close process. 

● Reviewing relevant meeting minutes including those of the Conflicts Committee, Risk, Capital & Compliance 

Committee and Audit Committee and correspondence with regulatory authorities, including Lloyd’s of London 

and the Prudential Regulatory Authority.  

 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances 
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the 
syndicate annual accounts. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of 
not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional 
misrepresentations, or through collusion. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the syndicate annual accounts is located on the FRC’s website 
at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report. 
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Use of this report 
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the syndicate’s members as a body in accordance 
with part 2 of The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 and for no 
other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other 
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent 
in writing. 
 

Other required reporting 
Under The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 we are required 
to report to you if, in our opinion: 
 

● we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or  

● adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Managing Agent in respect of the syndicate; or 

● certain disclosures of Managing Agent remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

● the syndicate annual accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records. 

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.  

 
 
 
 
 
Matthew Nichols (Senior statutory auditor) 
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 
London 
3 March 2022 
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Profit and loss: technical account - general business 

for the year ended 31 December 2021 
 

 
Note 

2021 

£’000 
 

2020 

£’000 

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance     

Gross premiums written  3 25,422  25,770 

Outward reinsurance premiums  (7,738)  (3,455) 

Net premiums written  17,684  22,315 

     

Change in the gross provision for unearned premiums  116  (562) 

Change in the provision for unearned premiums, reinsurers’ share   619  182 

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance  18,419  21,935 

     

Allocated investment return transferred from the non-technical 

account  (80)  771 

     

Total technical income  18,339  22,706 

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance      

Claims paid:     

- Gross amount  (12,171)  (14,261) 

- Reinsurers’ share  358  151 

Net claims paid  (11,813)  (14,110) 

     

Change in the provision for claims:     

- Gross amount  (7,669)  (15,858) 

- Reinsurers’ share  3,461  (151) 

Change in the net provision for claims  (4,208)  (16,009) 

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance   (16,021)  (30,119) 

     

Members’ standard personal expenses  (307)  (138) 

Net operating expenses  4,5,6 (2,602)  (2,429) 

Total technical charges  (18,930)  (32,686) 

     

Balance on the technical account for general business  (591)  (9,980) 

 

All operations are continuing. 

 

The notes to the annual accounts and significant accounting policies form part of these annual accounts. 
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Profit and loss: non-technical account 

for the year ended 31 December 2021 
 

 
Note 

2021 

£’000 

 2020 

£’000 

Balance on the technical account for general business   (591)  (9,980) 

Investment income 7 342  500 

Unrealised gains on investments  13  321 

Investment expenses and charges 7 (89)  (31) 

Unrealised losses on investments  (346)  (19) 

Allocated investment return transferred to the general business 

technical account   80  (771) 

Non-technical foreign exchange (loss)/gain   (163)  599 

Loss for the financial year   (754)  (9,381) 

 

There is no other comprehensive income. Accordingly, a separate statement of other comprehensive income has not been 

provided. 

 

The notes to the annual accounts and significant accounting policies form part of these annual accounts.  
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Balance sheet: assets 

as at 31 December 2021 
 

 Note 
2021 

£’000 

 2020 

£’000 

Investments     

Other financial investments  19,652  27,870 

Deposits with ceding undertakings  4  - 

  19,656  27,870 

     

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions     

Provision for unearned premiums  9 1,130  493 

Claims outstanding 9,10 3,667  153 

  4,797  646 

     

Debtors      

Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations 11 6,536  5,246 

Other debtors 12 27  54 

  6,563  5,300 

     

Other assets      

Cash at bank and in hand  13,139  2,244 

Overseas deposits   2  2 

  13,141  2,246 

     

Prepayments and accrued income     

Deferred acquisition costs 13 73  90 

     

Total assets  44,230  36,152 

 

The notes to the annual accounts and significant accounting policies form part of these annual accounts. 
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Balance sheet: liabilities 

as at 31 December 2021 
 

 Note 
2021 

£’000 

 2020 

£’000 

Capital and reserves     

Members’ balances  (6,670)  (4,884) 

     

Technical provisions     

Provision for unearned premiums  9 3,329  3,406 

Claims outstanding 9,10 44,694  36,460 

  48,023  39,866 

     

Creditors     

Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations  2,788  912 

Other creditors 14 23  258 

  2,811  1,170 

Accruals and deferred income     

Reinsurers’ share of deferred acquisition costs  66  - 

     

Total liabilities  44,230  36,152 

 

The annual accounts, which comprise the profit and loss: technical account – general business, profit and loss: non-

technical account, balance sheet: assets, balance sheet: liabilities, statement of changes in members’ balances, statement 

of cash flows and notes to the annual accounts and significant accounting policies, were approved by the Board of Tokio 

Marine Kiln Syndicates Limited on 3 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf by: 

 

 

 

 

R Patel 

Chief Financial Officer 

Tokio Marine Kiln Syndicates Limited 

3 March 2022  

 

The notes to the annual accounts and significant accounting policies form part of these annual accounts. 

 

  



 

Tokio Marine Kiln Catastrophe Syndicate 557 Report and accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021 21 

Statement of changes in members’ balances 

for the year ended 31 December 2021 
 

 
 2021 

£’000 

 2020 

£’000 

Members’ balances brought forward at 1 January   (4,884)  9,636 

Loss for the financial year  (754)  (9,381) 

Transfer to members in respect of underwriting participations  (883)  (4,973) 

Members’ agents fee advances  (149)  (166) 

Members’ balances carried forward at 31 December  (6,670)  (4,884) 

 

Members participate on syndicates by reference to years of account and their ultimate result, assets and liabilities are 

assessed with reference to policies incepting in that year of account in respect of their membership of a particular year. 

 

The notes to the annual accounts and significant accounting policies form part of these annual accounts. 
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Statement of cash flows 

for the year ended 31 December 2021 
 

 
 

2021 

£’000 

 2020 

£’000 

Cash flows from operating activities:     

Operating loss on ordinary activities  (754)  (9,381) 

Increase in gross technical provisions  8,157  14,706 

Increase in reinsurers' share of technical provisions  (4,151)  (3) 

Increase in debtors  (1,263)  (980) 

Increase in creditors  1,641  472 

Movement in other assets/liabilities  83  1,280 

Unrealised foreign currency gains  (213)  (1,307) 

Investment return  80  (771) 

Net cash inflow from operating activities  3,580  4,016 

     

Cash flows from investing activities:     

Purchase of equity and debt instruments  (5,636)  (5,313) 

Sale of equity and debt instruments  13,521  6,711 

Investment income received  253  482 

Other  (4)  288 

Net cash inflow from investing activities  8,134  2,168 

     

Cash flows from financing activities:     

Transfer to member in respect of underwriting participation  (883)  (4,973) 

Members’ agents fees paid on behalf of members  (149)  (166) 

Net cash outflow from financing activities  (1,032)  (5,139) 

     

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  10,682  1,045 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  2,244  1,170 

Foreign exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents   213  29 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  13,139  2,244 

 

The notes to the annual accounts and significant accounting policies form part of these annual accounts. 
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Notes to the annual accounts and significant accounting policies 
 

1.   Accounting policies 

1.1  Statement of compliance 

These annual accounts have been prepared in accordance with Regulation 5 of The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s 

Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 and Accounting Standards in the United Kingdom, including 

Financial Reporting Standard 102, ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic 

of Ireland’ (FRS 102) and Financial Reporting Standard 103, ‘Insurance Contracts’ (FRS 103). The general business result 

is determined on an annual basis of accounting. 

 

These annual accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the recognition of certain financial 

assets and liabilities measured at fair value. 

 

These annual accounts are presented in pounds sterling, which is the functional currency of the syndicate. All amounts 

have been rounded to the nearest thousand pounds, unless otherwise stated. 

 

1.2  New standards and amendments 

The syndicate has applied FRS 102 and FRS 103, both as issued in March 2018, which reflects the amendments made as 

part of the Triennial Review 2017. FRS 102 is subject to a periodic review at least every five years. The first periodic 

review, the Triennial Review 2017, was completed in December 2017, with an effective date of 1 January 2019.   

 

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) commenced the second periodic review in March 2021. Publication of a Financial 

Reporting Exposure Draft (FRED) is expected during 2022. The proposed effective date of the amendments set out in the 

FRED will be determined taking into account the nature of the proposals and other relevant factors, but will not be earlier 

than 1 January 2025.  

 

There are no amendments to UK accounting standards impacting the year ended 31 December 2021 annual accounts. 

 

1.3  Funds at Lloyd’s 

Every member is required to hold capital at Lloyd’s which is held in trust and is known as Funds at Lloyd’s (FAL). These 

funds are intended primarily to cover circumstances where syndicate assets prove insufficient to meet participating 

members’ underwriting liabilities. 

 

The level of FAL that Lloyd’s requires a member to maintain is determined by Lloyd’s based on PRA requirements and 

resource criteria. FAL has regard to a number of factors, including the nature and amount of risk to be underwritten by 

the member and the assessment of the reserving risk in respect of business that has been underwritten. Since FAL is not 

under the management of the managing agent, no amount has been shown in these annual accounts by way of such 

capital resources. However, the managing agent is able to make a call on the members’ FAL to meet liquidity requirements 

or to settle losses. 

 

1.4  Going concern 

The Directors consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual accounts.  

The following are key factors on which a going concern basis has been adopted. 

 

- Member level solvency – Lloyd’s applies capital requirements centrally at member level to ensure that Lloyd’s 

complies with Solvency II requirements, and beyond to meet its own financial strength, licence and ratings 

objectives. 

- A single market rating has been applied to Lloyd’s by Standards and Poor’s (A+ Strong), Fitch (AA- Very Strong), 

AM Best (A Excellent) and Kroll Bond (AA- Stable). 

- Cash flow forecasting and monitoring – Cash flow forecasts for the next 12 months are prepared on a regular 

basis and reported to Lloyd’s on a quarterly basis. 

- Syndicate business forecast - The syndicate business forecast for 2022 year of account was approved and all 
capital was pledged on 1 December 2021 and the syndicate intends to participate as an active syndicate for the 
2023 year of account. 

- Reinsurance purchasing - The syndicate has purchased reinsurance to protect against large claim volatility and 

the reinsurance credit ratings are assessed at placement and where credit ratings are not sufficient collateral is 

requested to ensure that the entire reinsurance portfolio is of high quality with respect to recoverability. 

 

1.5  Summary of accounting policies 

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the annual accounts are set out below. They have been 

applied consistently to all periods presented in these annual accounts. 
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a. Product classification 

Insurance contracts are defined as those containing significant insurance risk at the inception of the contract, or those 

where at the inception of the contract there is a scenario with commercial substance where the level of insurance risk 

may be significant. The significance of insurance risk is dependent on both the probability of an insured event and the 

magnitude of its potential effect. 

 

b. Premiums written 

Inwards premiums written comprise premiums on contracts incepting during the financial year as well as adjustments 

made in the year to premiums on contracts incepting in prior accounting periods. The estimates are updated on a regular 

basis. The proportion of risks incepted at the year-end date are reported as written. Premiums are shown gross of 

brokerage payable and exclude taxes and duties levied on them. Estimates are made for pipeline premiums on a risk-by-

risk basis, representing the difference between the written and signed premium, which is held on the balance sheet as an 

asset. 

 

Outwards reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same accounting period as the premiums for the related direct 

or inwards business being reinsured. 

 
c. Earned premiums 

Inwards and outwards earned premium represents the amount of written premium deemed to have been exposed to loss 

according to defined earnings patterns. The earning patterns are based primarily on time apportionment, with an 

adjustment for the risk profile of certain classes of business, particularly those exposed to seasonal weather-related 

events. The provision for unearned premium comprises the proportion of gross premiums written which is estimated to 

be earned after the balance sheet date. 

 

Reinstatement premiums arise on both inwards and outwards policies when a loss has been incurred on a policy and there 

is a clause which requires the reinstatement of the policy with the payment of a further premium by the policyholder. 

They are recognised as written and earned in full at the date of the event giving rise to the reinstatement premium. 

Outwards reinstatement premiums payable in the event of a claim being made are charged to the same year of account 

as that to which the recovery is credited. 

 

d. Claims paid and incurred 

Paid claims represent all claims paid during the year and include claims handling expenses. 

 

Claims incurred comprise paid claims and changes in the provisions for outstanding claims, including provisions for claims 

incurred but not reported (IBNR) and related expenses, together with any adjustments to claims from previous years. 

 

e. Claims provisions and related recoveries 

Gross claims incurred comprise the estimated cost of all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or not, 

including related direct and indirect claims handling costs and adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years. 

 

Provision is made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the balance sheet date, 

including outstanding claims estimated on a case-by-case basis and also the cost of claims Incurred But Not Reported 

(IBNR). The estimated cost of claims includes expenses to be incurred in settling claims. All reasonable steps are taken 

to ensure that the appropriate information regarding claims exposures is obtained. However, given the uncertainty in 

establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability 

established. All claims provisions are reported on an undiscounted basis. 

 

f. Provision for unexpired risks 

Provision is made for any deficiencies arising when unearned premiums, net of associated acquisition costs, are insufficient 

to meet expected claims and expenses after taking into account future investment return on the investments supporting 

the unearned premiums provision. The expected claims are calculated having regard only to events that have occurred 

prior to the balance sheet date. The need for an unexpired risks provision is assessed on a ‘managed together’ basis. 

Unexpired risks surpluses and deficits are offset where business classes are managed together and a provision is made if 

an aggregate deficit arises. The unexpired risks provision is included within other technical provisions. 

 

All reasonable steps are taken to ensure that the appropriate information regarding claims exposures is obtained. The 

calculation is based upon statistical analyses of historical experience, which assumes that the development pattern of 

premiums and claims will be similar to past experience. However, given the uncertainty in establishing a provision for 

unexpired risks, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability established. 
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g. Net operating expenses and personal expenses 

Net operating expenses comprise the cost of acquiring business including commission and profit commission as well as 

the staff costs and other expenses attributable to underwriting operations. 

 

Personal expenses comprise managing agent’s fee, Lloyd’s central fund contributions and Lloyd’s subscriptions. 

 

Net operating expenses and personal expenses are recognised on the accruals basis and represent the expenses incurred 

on underwriting operations and also the reinsurance commission income. 

 

h. Finance costs 

Finance costs comprise interest paid and bank charges together with facility fees on letters of credit and are recorded in 

the period in which they are incurred. 

 

i. Acquisition costs 

Acquisition costs, comprising commission and other costs related to the acquisition of new insurance contracts are deferred 

to the extent that they are attributable to premiums unearned at the balance sheet date. Where inwards business is ceded 

to an outwards proportional reinsurance treaty, an estimate of the relevant proportion of the inwards acquisition costs is 

calculated and deferred in line with the outwards unearned premium at the balance sheet date. 

 

Deferred acquisition costs, representing the proportion of commission and other acquisition costs that relate to unearned 

premium on policies in force at the year-end, are charged over the period in which related premiums are earned. Deferred 

acquisition costs are reviewed by category of business at the end of each reporting period and are written off where they 

are no longer considered to be recoverable. 

 

j. Foreign currencies  

Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the annual accounts are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which 

the syndicate operate (the functional currency). The annual accounts are presented in pounds sterling which is also the 

functional currency of the syndicate. 

 

Transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 

the transactions or an appropriate average rate of exchange. At each period end foreign currency monetary items are 

translated using the closing rate. For this purpose, all assets and liabilities arising from insurance contracts (including 

unearned premiums, deferred acquisition costs and unexpired risks provisions) are monetary items. 

 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the measurement at year-end 

exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the non-technical 

account. 

 

Exchange rates used are as follows: 

 2021 2020 

Average rate   

US dollar 1.38 1.28 

Canadian dollar 1.72 1.72 

Year-end rate   

US dollar 1.35 1.37 

Canadian dollar 1.71 1.74 

 

The distributable result on closing a year of account, usually at 36 months, is calculated using the exchange rates 

prevailing at the date of closure. 

 

k. Financial investments 

The syndicate has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102, “Basic Financial Instruments” and “Other Financial 

Instruments Issues”, respectively. 
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Information relating to investments is reported to internal management on a fair value basis therefore all financial 

investments are designated at fair value through profit or loss at acquisition. These are initially recorded at cost, which 

equates fair value and subsequently carried at fair value through profit or loss. 

 

All regular purchases and sales of financial investments are recognised on the trade date, being the date the syndicate 

commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

 

Fair value determinations for financial investments are based on either bid market prices at close of business on the year-

end date for listed investments, broker or dealer price quotations, or by reference to current market values of another 

substantially similar instrument. 

 

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows expires or where they have been 

transferred and the syndicate has also substantially transferred all risks and rewards of ownership. A financial liability is 

derecognised once the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet only when there is a legally 

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 

assets and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

Equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose value cannot be measured reliably are subsequently measured 

at cost less impairment. 

 

l. Derivative financial instruments 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are 

subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Changes in the fair value are recognised immediately in the profit and loss 

account. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions. All 

derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

 

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the 

consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by comparison with other observable 

current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation 

technique whose variables include only data from observable markets. 

 

m. Debtors and creditors arising out of direct and reinsurance operations  

Debtors and creditors arising out of direct and reinsurance operations are initially recognised at transaction price and are 

subsequently carried at the recoverable amount. The carrying value of is reviewed for impairment whenever events or 

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount is greater than the recoverable amount, with the impairment adjustment 

recorded in the profit and loss. Debtors arising out of direct insurance and reinsurance operations are stated net of specific 

provisions against doubtful debts which are made on the basis of reviews conducted by management. 

 

n. Other debtors and creditors 

Any other debtors and creditors are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently carried at the recoverable 

amount. The carrying value of other debtors is reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that 

the carrying amount is greater than the recoverable amount, with the impairment adjustment recorded in the profit and 

loss account. All other debtors and creditors are due within one year, unless otherwise stated. 

 

o. Cash at bank and in hand 

Cash at bank and in hand include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid 

investments with original maturities of 24 hours or less. Bank overdrafts, when applicable, are shown within borrowings 

in current liabilities. These are measured at cost less any allowance for impairment. Cash and cash equivalents consist of 

cash at bank and in hand only. 

 

p. Overseas deposits 

Overseas deposits are lodged as a condition of conducting underwriting business in certain countries. These are measured 

at cost less any allowance for impairment and classified as other assets. 

 

q. Investment return 

Investment return comprises all investment income, realised investment gains and losses and movements in unrealised 

gains and losses, net of investment management expenses, including interest. Realised gains and losses on investments 

carried at fair value through profit or loss are calculated as the difference between sale proceeds and the fair value at the 

previous balance sheet date, or purchase price if acquired during the year. Unrealised gains and losses on investments 
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represent the difference between the fair value at the balance sheet date and the fair value at the previous balance sheet 

date, or purchase price if acquired during the year. 

 

Investment return on general business is initially recorded in the non-technical account. A transfer is made from the non-

technical account to the general business technical account. Investment return has been wholly allocated to the technical 

account as all investments relate to the technical account. 

 

r. Investment yield 

The calendar year investment yield is calculated as the ratio of ‘aggregate investment return’ to ‘average funds available’, 

expressed as a percentage. Aggregate investment return is the total amount of net appreciation, investment income and 

accrued interest received during the year, after deducting investment management costs but before deducting tax. 

Average funds available is the average value of all investments (including accrued interest), deposits and surplus cash at 

the beginning of the year and at each quarter-end revalued at market prices. 

 

s. Taxation 

Under Schedule 19 of the Finance Act 1993 the syndicate does not pay UK taxation, its profits being allocated and assessed 

to tax on its members in direct proportion to their capacity. 

 

The syndicate pays various overseas direct and premium based taxes, the majority of which are allocable to its members 

in direct proportion to their capacity and which can be claimed by members either as double tax relief or as an expense 

against tax liabilities. 

 

t. Pension costs 

TMKS operates a defined contribution scheme. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which a fixed 

contribution is paid into a separate entity. Once the contributions have been paid TMKS has no further payment 

obligations. Pension contributions relating to syndicate staff are charged to the syndicate and included within net operating 

expenses. 

 

TMKS also operates a defined benefit scheme through the R J Kiln & Co. Limited Pension and Assurance Scheme (closed 

to future benefit accruals from 1 May 2003). This fund is valued at the balance sheet date by the scheme actuary. TMKS 

allocates a charge to the syndicate during the year which represents the syndicate’s yearly share of the obligated funding 

requirement of the scheme. 

 

u. Profit commission 

Profit commission is charged by the managing agent at a rate of 17.5% of profit subject to the operation of a two year 

deficit clause. Final settlement to the managing agent is made when the year of account closes; normally at 36 months. 

Profit commission is estimated on an ultimate basis for each year of account and accrued by the syndicate based on the 

interim annual accounting results of the year of account under UK GAAP to the extent it is probable (more likely than not) 

that the syndicate will be required to transfer economic benefits in settlement. 

 

v. Provisions 

A provision is recognised when the syndicate has a present legal or constructive obligation, as a result of a past event, 

that is expected to result in an outflow of resources. A provision is recognised when a reliable estimate of the amount of 

the obligation can be made. 

 

w. Current and non-current disclosure 

For each asset and liability line item that combines amounts expected to be recovered or settled (a) no more than 12 

months after the year-end date and (b) more than 12 months after the year-end date, the relevant note discloses the 

amount expected to be recovered or settled after more than 12 months. 

 

x. Contingencies 

Contingent liabilities arise as a result of past events when either it is not probable that there will be an outflow of resources 

or that the amount cannot be reliably measured at the reporting date or when the existence will be confirmed by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future events not wholly within the syndicate’s control. Contingent liabilities 

are disclosed in the annual accounts unless the probability of an outflow of resources is remote. 

 

y. Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet only when there is a legally 

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 

assets and settle the liability simultaneously. 
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2.   Use of critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies 

The preparation of the annual accounts requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 

management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the syndicate’s accounting policies. The areas involving 

a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the annual 

accounts are those listed below. 

 

Incurred but 

not reported 

claims (IBNR) 

 

The estimation of claims IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the 

estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the syndicate, where more information 

about the claim event is generally available. In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims the 

syndicate uses a variety of estimation techniques, generally based upon statistical analyses of 

historical experience, which assumes that the development pattern of the current claims will be 

consistent with past experience. Allowance is made, however, for changes or uncertainties which may 

create distortions in the underlying statistics or which might cause the cost of unsettled claims to 

increase or reduce when compared with the cost of previously settled claims including: 

• changes in processes which might accelerate or slow down the development and/or recording of 

paid or incurred claims compared with the statistics from previous periods; 

• changes in the legal environment; 

• the effects of inflation; 

• changes in the mix of business; 

• the impact of large losses; and 

• movements in industry benchmarks. 

 

A component of these estimation techniques is usually the estimation of the cost of notified but not 

paid claims. In estimating the cost of these, regard is given to the claim circumstance as reported, 

any information available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar 

characteristics in previous periods. 

 

Large claims affecting each relevant business class are generally assessed separately, either measured 

on a case-by-case basis or projected separately, in order to allow for the possible distorting effect of 

the development and incidence of these large claims. 

 

Where possible, multiple techniques are adopted in order to estimate the required level of provisions. 

This assists in giving greater understanding of the trends inherent in the data being projected. The 

projections given by the various methodologies also assist in setting the range of possible outcomes. 

The most appropriate estimation technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the 

business class and the extent of the development of each accident year. The amount of salvage and 

subrogation recoveries is separately identified and, where material, reported as an asset. 

 

The Directors consider that the provisions for gross claims and related reinsurance recoveries are fairly 

stated on the basis of the information currently available to them. However, the ultimate liability will 

vary as a result of subsequent information and events and this may result in significant adjustments 

to the amounts provided. Adjustments to the amounts of claims provisions established in prior years 

are reflected in the report and accounts for the period in which the adjustments are made. The 

methods used, and the estimates made, are reviewed regularly. 

 

Provisions are calculated gross of any reinsurance recoveries. A separate estimate is made of the 

amounts that will be recoverable from reinsurers based upon the gross provisions and having due 

regard to collectability. An estimate of the future cost of indirect claims handling is calculated as a 

percentage of the claims reserves held at the balance sheet date. 

 

Reinsurance 

This business area is predominantly ‘short tail’, as there is not a significant delay between the 

occurrence of the claim and the claim being reported. For short tail risks, the costs of claims notified 

to the syndicate at the year-end date are estimated on a case-by-case basis to reflect the individual 

circumstances of each claim. The ultimate expected cost of claims is projected from this data by 

reference to statistics which show how estimates of claims incurred in previous periods have developed 

over time to reflect changes in the underlying estimates of the cost of notified claims and late 

notifications. For liability risks, claims may not become apparent for many years after the event giving 

rise to the claim has happened, and there will typically be greater variation between initial estimates 

and final outcomes compared with other classes. Differences between the estimated cost and 
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subsequent re-estimation or settlement of claims are reflected in the technical account for the year in 

which these claims are re-estimated or settled. 

  

COVID-19 

The Directors are aware of the heightened estimation uncertainty in reserving for COVID-19 estimated 

losses, exacerbated by the ongoing nature of the event. Management have a robust reserving 

approach and carried out detailed analyses to corroborate the held reserves at the year-end date. 

 

Written 

premium 

Pipeline 

premium 

Written premium is reported according to management estimation of when premium will be written. 

 

An estimate of premiums written during the year that have not yet been notified by the financial year-

end ‘pipeline premiums’ is made on a risk-by-risk basis. The pipeline premium is booked as written 

and an assessment is made of the related unearned premium provision and an estimate of claims 

incurred but not reported in respect of the earned element. 

 

For delegated authority business the underwriters estimate how much business will attach to a facility 

based on information provided by the broker, using the underwriters’ experience with reference to the 

trading conditions of the market. This estimate is updated on a regular basis. It is assumed that risks 

attaching to the master facility incept evenly across the period of the facility and therefore only the 

proportion of risks which have incepted to the master facility by the year-end date are reported within 

written premium in these report and accounts. 

 

Earned 

premium 

Earned premium is estimated based on assumptions of how each risk is earned according to its method 

of placement and class of business. Each risk falling within a class of business is earned according to 

the estimated pattern applying to that class of business, which takes into account the class 

characteristics including exposure to seasonal weather-related events. This approach is applied 

consistently year-on-year. 

 

The earning of premiums is based primarily on time apportionment, with an adjustment for the risk 

profile of certain classes of business particularly those exposed to seasonal weather-related events. 

 

Provision for 

unexpired 

risks 

All reasonable steps are taken to ensure that the appropriate information regarding claims exposures 

is obtained. The calculation is based upon statistical analyses of historical experience, which assumes 

that the development pattern of premium and claims will be similar to past experience. However, 

given the uncertainty in establishing a provision for unexpired risks, it is likely that the final outcome 

will prove to be different from the original liability established. 

 

Reinsurance 

recoverable 

Reinsurance is deemed to be fully recoverable unless there is reason to doubt to its recoverability. In 

these circumstances specific provisions are made based on the expected proportional recovery and 

the credit risk profile of the counterparties. 

 

Financial 

investments 

Financial investments are carried in the balance sheet at fair value. Market valuations of funds are 

obtained from fund administrators. The fair value of financial instruments where no active market 

exists or where quoted prices are not otherwise available is determined by using valuation techniques. 

 

 

3.   Segmental analysis 

All business written by the syndicate is reinsurance. All business was concluded in the UK. The total commission payable 

on direct business was £nil (2020: £nil). 

 

4.   Net operating expenses 

 

 2021 

£’000 

 2020 

£’000 

Acquisition costs  546  639 

Change in deferred acquisition costs  18  (1) 

Administrative expenses  2,478  1,791 

Reinsurance commissions and profit participations   (440)  - 

  2,602  2,429 
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Auditors’ remuneration 

 

 2021 

£’000 

 2020 

£’000 

Fees payable to the syndicate’s auditor for the audit of the syndicate annual 

accounts  71  56 

Other services pursuant to legislation  31  24 

All other services  34  34 

  136  114 

 

The charge incurred for other services pursuant to legislation relates to the audit and review of the syndicate’s regulatory 

returns. The charge incurred for all other services in 2021 relates to the provision of a statement of actuarial opinion on 

the reserves. 

 

Audit fees are billed combined for the TMK Group and the syndicate and are paid by a fellow subsidiary of TMKGL. Audit 

fees are recharged to the syndicate. 

 

5.   Staff costs 

The syndicate and its managing agent have no employees. Staff are employed by Tokio Marine Kiln Insurance Services 

Limited. The following amounts were recharged to the syndicate in respect of salary costs and are included within 

administrative expenses: 

 

 2021 

£’000 

 2020 

£’000 

Wages and salaries  969  896 

Social security costs and pension costs  285  238 

  1,254  1,134 

 

Included in social security costs and pension costs are amounts related to the defined benefit pension scheme recharged 

by the managing agent: 

 

 2021 

£’000 

 2020 

£’000 

Net charge from managing agent during year  87  87 

Amount funded in year  87  87 

 

6.   Emoluments of the Directors and active underwriters 

The Directors of Tokio Marine Kiln Syndicates Limited received the following aggregate remuneration in relation to their 

work on the syndicate: 

 

 2021 

£’000 

 2020 

£’000 

Emoluments  67  24 

 

Of the above amount £44,000 (2020: £16,000) was charged to the syndicate as an expense, with the remainder borne 

by other group entities. 

 

The active underwriter received the following remuneration charged as a syndicate expense: 

 

 2021 

£’000 

 2020 

£’000 

Emoluments  7  59 
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7.   Investment return 

 
 2021 

£’000 

 2020 

£’000 

Investment income:     

Income from other financial investments  288  419 

Realised gains on investments  54  81 

  342  500 

Investment expenses and charges:     

Investment management expenses  (11)  (13) 

Realised losses on investments  (78)  (18) 

  (89)  (31) 

 

 

8.   Calendar year investment yield 

 

 2021 

£’000 

 2020 

£’000 

Average amount of syndicate funds during the year     

Sterling fund  4,232  4,763 

US dollar fund  24,405  25,814 

Canadian dollar fund  1,010  932 

Euro fund  465  579 

     

Aggregate gross investment return     

Before investment expenses  (69)  784 

After investment expenses  (80)  771 

     

Calendar year investment yield  %  % 

Before investment expenses  (0.2)  2.4 

After investment expenses  (0.3)  2.4 

     

Analysis of calendar year investment yield by fund  %  % 

Sterling fund  (0.9)  1.2 

US dollar fund  (0.2)  2.8 

Canadian dollar fund  0.1  (0.1) 

 

The sterling fund balance includes investments held in all currencies other than US dollars, Canadian dollars and Euros. 

 

  



 

Tokio Marine Kiln Catastrophe Syndicate 557 Report and accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021 32 

9.   Reconciliation of insurance balances 

The reconciliation of the opening and closing provision for unearned premiums is as follows: 

 
Gross 

£’000 

Reinsurance 

£’000 

Net 

£’000 

2021    

At 1 January 3,406 (493) 2,913 

Premiums written in the year 25,422 (7,738) 17,684 

Premiums earned during the year (25,538) 7,119 (18,419) 

Foreign exchange adjustments 39 (18) 21 

At 31 December 3,329 (1,130) 2,199 

2020    

At 1 January 2,954 (337) 2,617 

Premiums written in the year 25,770 (3,455) 22,315 

Premiums earned during the year (25,208) 3,273 (21,935) 

Foreign exchange adjustments (110) 26 (84) 

At 31 December 3,406 (493) 2,913 

 

Claims Outstanding is analysed as follows: 

 
Gross 

£’000 

Reinsurance 

£’000 

Net 

£’000 

2021    

Notified outstanding claims 12,092 (352) 11,740 

Provision for claims incurred but not reported 32,380 (3,315) 29,065 

Claims handling expenses 222 - 222 

 44,694 (3,667) 41,027 

2020    

Notified outstanding claims 12,936 (36) 12,900 

Provision for claims incurred but not reported 23,343 (117) 23,226 

Claims handling expenses 181 - 181 

 36,460 (153) 36,307 

 

The reconciliation of the opening and closing provision for claims outstanding is as follows: 

 
Gross 

£’000 

Reinsurance 

£’000 

Net 

£’000 

2021    

At 1 January 36,460 (153) 36,307 

Claims incurred during the year 19,840 (3,819) 16,021 

Claims paid during the year (12,171) 358 (11,813) 

Foreign exchange adjustments 565 (53) 512 

At 31 December 44,694 (3,667) 41,027 

2020    

At 1 January 22,206 (306) 21,900 

Claims incurred during the year 30,119 - 30,119 

Claims paid during the year (14,261) 151 (14,110) 

Foreign exchange adjustments (1,604) 2 (1,602) 

At 31 December 36,460 (153) 36,307 
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10.   Claims development 

Within the calendar year technical result, a surplus of £1,983,000 (2020: surplus of £966,000) relates to the reassessment 

of net claims incurred for previous accident years. 

 

The following tables show the development of gross and net claims incurred including IBNR and the claims handling 

provision over the last ten years. The claims development tables are prepared on an underwriting year of account basis, 

and therefore reflect the pattern of earned premium and risk exposure over a number of years. All figures are shown 

converted at current year-end rates. 

 

End of 

first year 

One 

 year 

later 

Two 

years 

later 

Three 

years 

later 

Four 

years 

later 

Five 

years 

later 

Six 

years 

later 

Seven 

years 

later 

Eight 

years 

later 

Nine 

years 

later 

Claims 

Paid 

Year of Account £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Gross of reinsurance            

2012 28.8 26.5 25.7 26.6 26.3 26.3 26.2 24.8 24.7 24.5 (23.1) 

2013 14.2 16.1 15.4 15.0 14.7 14.3 14.2 14.1 14.0  (13.9) 

2014 8.1 8.3 7.5 7.1 7.1 7.0 7.0 7.0   (6.9) 

2015 3.3 4.2 3.6 3.3 3.0 3.0 3.0    (2.9) 

2016 6.6 6.4 5.9 5.6 5.5 5.5     (5.2) 

2017 24.4 21.3 20.4 20.3 19.7      (17.3) 

2018 12.3 11.8 11.6 11.7       (8.3) 

2019 4.4 14.7 14.3        (4.3) 

2020 18.8 20.8         (12.2) 

2021 20.0                   (2.8) 

Net of reinsurance            

2012 28.8 26.5 25.7 26.6 26.3 26.3 26.2 24.8 24.7 24.5 (23.1) 

2013 14.2 16.1 15.4 15.0 14.7 14.3 14.2 14.1 14.0  (13.9) 

2014 8.1 8.3 7.5 7.1 7.1 7.0 7.0 7.0   (6.9) 

2015 3.3 4.2 3.6 3.3 3.0 3.0 3.0    (2.9) 

2016 6.6 6.4 5.9 5.6 5.5 5.5     (5.2) 

2017 24.4 21.3 20.4 20.3 19.7      (17.3) 

2018 12.3 11.8 11.6 11.7       (8.3) 

2019 4.4 14.7 14.3        (4.3) 

2020 18.8 20.8         (12.2) 

2021 16.6                   (3.1) 

 

 
Gross 

£m 

Reinsurance 

£m 

Net 

£m 

Estimated balance to pay 43.6 (3.7) 39.9 

2011 and prior 1.1 - 1.1 

Outstanding claims reserve 44.7 (3.7) 41.0 
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11.   Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations 

 
 2021 

£’000 

2020 

£’000 

Amounts due from intermediaries within one year  6,310 5,246 

Gross reinsurance recoverable on paid claims within one year  226 - 

  6,536 5,246 

 

12.   Other debtors 

The following balances are included within other debtors: 

 
 2021 

£’000 

2020 

£’000 

Overseas tax  4 6 

Sundry debtors  23 48 

Total other debtors  27 54 

Due after more than one year  - 1 

 

13.   Reconciliation of deferred acquisition costs 

The reconciliation of the opening and closing deferred acquisition costs is as follows: 

 
Gross 

£’000 

Reinsurance 

£’000 

Net 

£’000 

2021    

At 1 January 90 - 90 

Cost deferred during the year 546 (505) 41 

Charge for the year  (564) 440 (124) 

Foreign exchange adjustments 1 (1) - 

At 31 December 73 (66) 7 

2020    

At 1 January 91 - 91 

Cost deferred during the year 639 - 639 

Charge for the year  (638) - (638) 

Foreign exchange adjustments (2) - (2) 

At 31 December 90 - 90 

 

14.   Other creditors 

The following balances are included within other creditors: 

 
 2021 

£’000 

2020 

£’000 

Sundry creditors  23 249 

Forward currency contracts  - 9 

  23 258 

Due after more than one year  - - 
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15.   Off-balance sheet items 

The syndicate has not been party to an arrangement, which is not reflected in its balance sheet, where material risks and 

benefits arise for the syndicate. 

 

16.   Related parties 

 

From/to 

related 

parties 

TMKS/ 

TMKIS 

 £’000 £’000 

2021   

Profit and loss   

Gross Premiums written 25,417 - 

Claims Paid: Gross amount (12,056) - 

Members’ standard personal expenses (Managing agency fee) - (307) 

Net operating expenses - (2,354) 

   

Balance sheet   

Technical provisions: Claims outstanding1 (44,122) - 

2020 (restated)   

Profit and loss   

Gross Premiums written 25,770 - 

Claims Paid: Gross amount2 (14,234) - 

Members’ standard personal expenses (Managing agency fee) - (301) 

Net operating expenses2 - (1,623) 

   

Balance sheet   

Technical provisions: Claims outstanding1,2 (35,704) - 
1 Notified claims 
2 Restated to exclude business written prior to the Syndicate 510 quota share arrangement 

 

From/to related parties 

Syndicate 557 accepted written premium from Syndicate 510 and Syndicate 1880 in the calendar year (2020: Syndicate 

510 only). 

 

Tokio Marine Kiln Syndicates Limited 

Included within net operating expenses is profit commission charged by the managing agent at a rate of 17.5% of profit 

subject to the operation of a two-year deficit clause. Final settlement to the managing agent is made when the year of 

account closes; normally at 36 months. Profit commission is estimated on an ultimate basis for each year of account and 

accrued by the syndicate based on the interim annual accounting results of the year of account under UK GAAP to the 

extent it is probable (more likely than not) that the syndicate will be required to transfer economic benefits in settlement. 

 

Managing agency fees were paid by the syndicate to Tokio Marine Kiln Syndicates Limited. 

 

Tokio Marine Kiln Insurance Services Limited 

Expenses were paid to Tokio Marine Kiln Insurance Services Limited for expenses paid on behalf of the syndicate. 
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17.   Risk management 

Details of the syndicate’s risk management framework are given in the ‘principal risks and uncertainties section’ in the 

report of the Directors of the managing agent. 

 
a) Insurance risk 

Earned premium sensitivity analysis 

The following table gives an indication of the impact on Gross earned premium and members’ balances of a one percent 

increase and decrease in earned premium on each year of account. Impact on members’ balance has been calculated by 

applying the underlying attritional loss ratio. 

Increase/(Decrease) 
2021 

£’000 

 2020 

£’000 

Impact of 1% increase on Gross earned premium 458  249 

Impact of 1% increase on Members’ balances 365  191 

Impact of 1% decrease on Gross earned premium (458)  (249) 

Impact of 1% decrease on Members’ balances (365)  (191) 

 

Claims sensitivity analysis 

The following table gives an indication of the impact on members’ balances of a one percent increase and decrease in 

loss ratio. 

Increase/(Decrease) in Members’ balances 
2021 

£’000 

 2020 

£’000 

Impact of 1% increase in loss ratio (255)  (252) 

Impact of 1% decrease in loss ratio 255  252 

 

b) Financial risk 

The syndicate is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets and financial liabilities. In particular, the 

key financial risk is that the proceeds from financial assets are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from insurance 

policies and investment contracts as they fall due. The most important components of this financial risk are credit risk, 

liquidity risk and market risk (including interest rate risk and currency risk). 

 

These risks arise from open positions in interest rate and currency products, all of which are exposed to general and 

specific market movements. The risks that the syndicate primarily faces due to the nature of its investment and liabilities 

are interest rate risk and currency risk. 

 

Credit risk 

For details of the management of the syndicate’s credit risk please refer to Report of the Directors of the managing agent. 

The following table provides information regarding credit risk exposures of the syndicate by classifying assets according 

to the Standard & Poor’s credit rating of the counterparties. Where a security has no credit rating, the rating of the issuer 

is used. During the year there were no material breaches in exposure limits. 
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AAA AA A 

BBB and 

below Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

2021      

Financial investments:      

-Other financial investments 2,397 7,848 3,970 5,437 19,652 

-Overseas deposits - 1 - 1 2 

-Deposits with ceding undertakings - - 4 - 4 

Cash at bank and in hand - - 13,139 - 13,139 

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions - - 24 3,643 3,667 

Reinsurance recoverable on paid claims - - - 191 191 

 2,397 7,849 17,137 9,272 36,655 

2020      

Financial investments:      

-Other financial investments 8,921 7,721 4,789 6,439 27,870 

-Overseas deposits - 1 - 1 2 

Cash at bank and in hand - - 2,048 196 2,244 

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions - 8 95 50 153 

 8,921 7,730 6,932 6,686 30,269 

 

In respect of the reinsurers’ share of claims, there are collateralised agreements with reinsurers, which comprise letters 

of credit and trust accounts totalling US $29,651,000 (2020: US $21,516,000). 

 

The largest potential reinsurer credit exposure to the syndicate at 31 December 2021 was 56% with Greenlight 

Reinsurance Ltd., an A- A.M. Best rated security (2020: 32.7%; Swiss Re Europe S.A UK Branch; Standards and Poor’s 

AA-). The outwards reinsurance team review the level of this exposure and take appropriate action where necessary. This 

includes requesting a letter of credit for all reinsurers, related parties included. 
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An aged analysis of financial assets past-due is shown below. 

 Fully performing 

Past due but not 

impaired Impairment Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

2021     

Financial investments:     

-Other financial investments 19,652 - - 19,652 

-Overseas deposits 2 - - 2 

-Deposits with ceding undertakings 4 - - 4 

Cash at bank and in hand 13,139 - - 13,139 

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions 3,667 - - 3,667 

Reinsurance recoverable on paid claims  191 35 - 226 

 36,655 35 - 36,690 

2020     

Financial investments:     

-Other financial investments 27,870 - - 27,870 

-Overseas deposits 2 - - 2 

Cash at bank and in hand 2,244 - - 2,244 

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions 153 - - 153 

 30,269 - - 30,269 

 

For assets to be classified as past-due the contractual payments are in arrears by more than 30 days. An impairment 

adjustment is recorded in the profit and loss: non-technical account for assets impaired. The syndicate operates mainly 

on a ‘neither past-due nor impaired basis’ and when evidence is available, sufficient collateral will be obtained for ‘past-

due and impaired’ assets. An impairment assessment will also be performed if applicable. 

 

Liquidity risk 

For details of the management of the syndicate’s liquidity risks please refer to the Report of the Directors of the managing 

agent. 

 

The syndicate writes a small proportion of US Situs business and a smaller proportion of Canadian business which require 

the deposit of appropriate monies into specific trust funds. Some of these trust funds are regulated, requiring quarterly 

assessment of the adequacy of funding. Surplus funds or additional funding requirements are settled each quarter between 

the regulated and non-regulated trust funds. In exceptional circumstances, and with approval from Lloyd’s, inter-fund 

settlement can take place outside the quarterly process. As at 31 December 2021 the balance held in these trust funds 

was US $25,000 (2020: US $255,000) and Canadian $1,000 (2020: Canadian $1,000). 

 

The following table analyses the financial liabilities and claims outstanding into their relevant maturity groups based on 

the remaining period at the year-end date to their contractual maturities or expected settlement dates. The projected 

settlement of claims outstanding is modelled using actuarial techniques. These estimates assume that future claims 

settlement patterns will be broadly similar to those experienced in the past. 
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Up to 1 

year 1-3 years 3-5 years 

Over 5 

years Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

2021      

Creditors 2,811 - - - 2,811 

Technical provisions: Claims outstanding 18,949 15,932 5,027 4,786 44,694 

Financial liabilities and claims outstanding 21,760 15,932 5,027 4,786 47,505 

2020      

Forward currency contracts 9 - - - 9 

Creditors 1,161 - - - 1,161 

Technical provisions: Claims outstanding 18,915 11,695 3,050 2,800 36,460 

Financial liabilities and claims outstanding 20,085 11,695 3,050 2,800 37,630 

 

Foreign currency market risk 

For further details of the management of the syndicate’s market risk please refer to the Report of the Directors of the 

managing agent. 

 

The syndicate maintains bank accounts, investment portfolios and claims reserves in pounds sterling, US dollars, and 

Canadian dollars (the Lloyd’s closing currencies). Additionally, bank accounts are maintained in Euros. Transactions arising 

in other currencies are translated to the Lloyd’s closing currencies as they occur. The majority of the syndicate’s financial 

assets are denominated in the same currencies as its insurance liabilities and thus the developing profit or loss that 

remains embedded within the syndicate gives rise to the main currency exposure. The profit or loss is distributed, or 

settled, in accordance with Lloyd’s rules using a combination of pounds sterling and US dollars after deduction of the 

member level charges. 

 

Foreign currency liquidity and exposure for the syndicate is the responsibility of the Chief Financial Officer. Strategy is 

recommended and agreed by the Investment Committee. The syndicate currency exposure and future cash flows are 

monitored by currency and potential exposures and shortfalls addressed by foreign currency transactions, hedges or cash 

calls on members. 

 

A substantial proportion of the syndicate’s business is written in currencies other than pounds sterling, in particular US 

dollars. The syndicate’s business is therefore exposed to changes in exchange rates and there is no assurance that foreign 

currency risk mitigation initiatives which the syndicate undertakes will be successful in preventing any losses due to such 

changes. 

 

The syndicate uses a forward currency contract to manage its exposure to foreign currency risks as a result of protecting 

the net asset position in the non-closing currency. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the syndicate’s policies 

approved by the Investment Committee, which provides written principles on the use of financial derivatives. 

 

Exchange rate sensitivity analysis 

The analysis below is performed for possible movements in key variables, with all other variables held constant, showing 

the impact on the result and net assets. The correlation of variables will have a significant effect in determining the 

ultimate impact. However, to isolate and demonstrate the effect due to changes in variables, each variable has been 

changed on an individual basis. 

 
The following table gives an indication of the impact on the result and net assets or liabilities of a ten percent change in 

the relative strength of the pound sterling against the value of the US dollar and Canadian dollar, excluding the effect of 

hedges. 
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2021 

£’000 

 

 

2020 

£’000 

Sterling strengthens 10% against US dollar 650  648 

Sterling strengthens 10% against Canadian dollar 21  (42) 

Sterling weakens 10% against US dollar (650)  (648) 

Sterling weakens 10% against Canadian dollar (21)  42 

 

Interest rate market risk 

For further details of the management of the syndicate’s market risk please refer to the Report of the Directors of the 

managing agent. 

 

The syndicate holds investments in its balance sheet and the performance of its investment portfolio may have an effect 

on the result. The income derived by the syndicate from its investments, and the capital value of its investments, may 

fall as well as rise. Therefore, changes in interest rates, credit ratings and other economic variables could substantially 

affect the syndicate’s profitability. 

 

The use of financial derivatives is governed by the syndicate’s policies approved by the Investment Committee, which 

provides written principles on the use of financial derivatives. More information is available in the ‘fair value estimation’ 

in part (c) of this note. 

 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis 

The analysis below is performed for possible movements in key variables with all other variables held constant, showing 

the impact on the result. The correlation of variables will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impact. 

However, to isolate and demonstrate the effect due to changes in variables, each variable has been changed on an 

individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these variables are non-linear. 

 

The table below shows the estimated impact on the result and net assets or liabilities of a 50-basis point movement in 

interest rates on the market value of the syndicate’s investments. 

 

 

2021 

£’000 

 

 

2020 

£’000 

Impact of 50 basis point increase on result (193)  (199) 

Impact of 50 basis point decrease on result 193  181 

Impact of 50 basis point increase on net assets (193)  (199) 

Impact of 50 basis point decrease on net assets 193  181 

 

Capital management 

Disclosures on capital management can be found in the Report of the Directors of the managing agent. 

 

c) Fair value estimation 

Financial instruments that are fair valued through profit and loss are classified using a fair value hierarchy that reflects 

the significance of the inputs used in these measurements. 

• Level 1 financial instruments comprise government bonds and securities which have been valued at fair value 

using quoted prices in an active market. 

• Level 2 financial instruments are less regularly traded government agency bonds, supranational bonds, corporate 

bonds, money market and open-ended funds. These fair values have been derived from market observable 

inputs. 

• The fair value for level 3 financial instruments is derived from inputs that are not observable. The syndicate held 

no level 3 securities as at 31 December 2021. 
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Level 1 

£’000 

Level 2 

£’000 

Level 3 

£’000 

  Total 

£’000 

Historical 

Cost 

£’000 

2021      

Other financial investments 3,438 16,214 - 19,652 19,876 

Overseas deposits 1 1 - 2 2 

Deposits with ceding undertakings 4 - - 4 4 

 3,443 16,215 - 19,658 19,882 

2020      

Other financial investments 4,025 23,845 - 27,870 27,541 

Overseas deposits 1 1 - 2 2 

Forward currency derivatives - liabilities (9) - - (9) - 

 4,017 23,846 - 27,863 27,543 

 

The syndicate manages the foreign exchange risk posed by writing insurance policies in certain regions by using forward 

currency contracts. The total notional value of these contracts at 31 December 2021 was £nil (2020: £1,118,000). 

 

18.   Post balance sheet events 

The syndicate may have claims exposure to the recent and rapidly developing war in Ukraine. While it is too early to 

estimate the cost of any possibly exposures, at this time we do not expect any losses to materially impact our operations 

or financial position. The Syndicate holds no direct assets in Ukraine or Russia and indirect investment exposures are 

immaterial. 

 

There are no other post balance sheet events to report. 

 



 

Syndicate 557 Annual report and accounts 2020   42 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tokio Marine Kiln Syndicate 557 
 

Underwriting Year Accounts for the 2019 Year of Account 
 

 



 

Tokio Marine Kiln Catastrophe Syndicate 557 Underwriting Year Accounts for the 2019 Year of Account 43 

Report of the Directors of the managing agent 
The managing agent presents its report at 31 December 2021 for the 2019 closed year of account. This report is prepared 

in accordance with the Lloyd’s Syndicate Accounting Byelaw (No. 8 of 2005). It accompanies the underwriting year and 

run-off accounts prepared on an underwriting year basis of accounting as required by Statutory Instrument No. 1950 of 

2008, Regulation 5 of the Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008. 

 

2019 closed year of account 

The syndicate made a 2019 closing year profit of £0.6 million (before members’ agents fees) on allocated capacity of 

£32.3 million (return on capacity 1.9%) after taking account of operating expenses, foreign exchange, Lloyd’s expenses 

and investment income. 

 

The Syndicate was significantly impacted by COVID-19 losses through its exposure to business interruption risk within 

Syndicate 510’s US property excess of loss account. The 2019 Atlantic hurricane season also registered above-average 

activity, albeit many of the natural weather events were weak and short-lived, with Storm Dorian being the only notable 

loss for the Syndicate. These losses were offset by favourable back year reserve releases and relatively benign experience 

across the remainder of the portfolio. 

 

Post balance sheet events  

There are no post balance sheet events to report. 

 

Disclosure of information to the auditors 

As far as each person who was a Director of the managing agent at the date of approving this report is aware, there is 

no relevant audit information, which is information needed by the auditors in connection with its report, of which the 

auditors are unaware. Having made enquiries of fellow Directors of the managing agent and the syndicates’ auditors, each 

Director has taken all the steps that they are obliged to take as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any 

relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information. 

 

Reappointment of auditors 

The Board approved the reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors on an ongoing basis for the managed 

syndicates, managing agent and other Tokio Marine Kiln Group entities. 

 

Approved by the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

B T Irick  

Chief Executive Officer 

Tokio Marine Kiln Syndicates Limited 

3 March 2022 

  



 

Tokio Marine Kiln Catastrophe Syndicate 557 Underwriting Year Accounts for the 2019 Year of Account 44 

Statement of managing agent’s responsibilities 
The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 (‘2008 Regulations’) 

require the managing agent to prepare syndicate underwriting year accounts at 31 December in respect of any 

underwriting year which is being closed by RITC which give a true and fair view of the result of the underwriting year at 

closure. Detailed requirements in respect of the underwriting year accounts are set out in the Lloyd’s Syndicate Accounting 

Byelaw (No. 8 of 2005). 

 

In preparing the syndicate underwriting year accounts, the managing agent is required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies which are applied consistently and where there are items which affect more than 

one year of account, ensure a treatment which is equitable between the members of the syndicate affected. In 

particular, the amount charged by way of premium in respect of the RITC shall, where the reinsuring members and 

reinsured members are members of the same syndicate for different years of account, be equitable between them, 

having regard to the nature and amount of the liabilities reinsured; 

• take into account all income and charges relating to a closed year of account without regard to the date of receipt 

or payment; 

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 

• state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed 

and explained in the underwriting year accounts. 

 

The managing agent is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any 

time the financial position of each syndicate and enable it to ensure that each syndicate underwriting year accounts 

comply with the 2008 Regulations. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of each syndicate and hence for 

taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

The managing agent is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included 

on its website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements 

may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

 

The Directors of the managing agent confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the 

syndicate underwriting year accounts. 
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Syndicate 557 – 
2019 closed year of account 
 

Report on the audit of the syndicate underwriting year financial 

statements 
 

Opinion 
In our opinion, 557’s syndicate underwriting year financial statements for the 2019 year of account for the 36 months 

ended 31 December 2021 (the “underwriting year financial statements”): 

 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the syndicate’s affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of its profit for the 2019 

closed year of account; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United 

Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 

Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law); and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and 

Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 and the Lloyd’s Syndicate Accounting Byelaw (No. 8 of 2005).  

 

We have audited the underwriting year financial statements included within the Underwriting Year Accounts, which 

comprise: the Balance sheet for the 2019 closed year of account as at 31 December 2021; the Profit and loss account: 

technical account – general business and the Profit and loss account: non-technical account for the 36 months ended 31 

December 2021; and the notes to the underwriting year financial statements, which include a description of the significant 

accounting policies. 

 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”), including ISA (UK) 

800, and The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 and other 

applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of 

the underwriting year financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

 

Independence 

We remained independent of the syndicate in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 

the underwriting year financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, as applicable to other 

entities of public interest, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  

 

Emphasis of matter – Basis of preparation 

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 1 of the underwriting year financial statements, which describes 

the basis of preparation. In particular, as these underwriting year financial statements relate to a closed underwriting 

year of account, matters relating to going concern are not relevant to these underwriting year financial statements. The 

underwriting year financial statements are prepared in accordance with a special purpose framework for the specific 

purpose as described in the Use of this report paragraph below. As a result, the underwriting year financial statements 

may not be suitable for another purpose. 

 

Reporting on other information 
The other information comprises all of the information in the Underwriting Year Accounts other than the underwriting year 

financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Managing Agent is responsible for the other information. Our 

opinion on the underwriting year financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not 

express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the underwriting year financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the underwriting year 

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify 

an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether 

there is a material misstatement of the underwriting year financial statements or a material misstatement of the other 

information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.  
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Responsibilities for the underwriting year financial statements and the audit 
 

Responsibilities of the Managing Agent for the underwriting year financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Managing Agent’s Responsibilities, the Managing Agent is responsible for the 

preparation of the underwriting year financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being 

satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the result for the 2019 closed year of account. The Managing Agent is also 

responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of underwriting year financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the underwriting year financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the underwriting year financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these underwriting year financial statements. 

 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line 

with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The 

extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below. 

 

Based on our understanding of the syndicate and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with 

laws and regulations related to breaches of UK and European regulatory principles, such as those governed by the 

Prudential Regulation Authority and the Financial Conduct Authority, and those regulations set by the Council of Lloyd’s, 

and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the underwriting year financial 

statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the underwriting year financial 

statements such as The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008. We 

evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the underwriting year financial 

statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to the posting 

of inappropriate journals and management bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures performed by the engagement 

team included: 

 

• Discussions with management, internal audit and the risk and compliance functions, including consideration of 

known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulation and fraud. 

 

• Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates, in 

particular in relation to valuation of the IBNR component of claims outstanding and estimated premium income. 

 

• Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations 

impacting revenue, journals posted by senior management and/or those posted late in the year end close process. 

 

• Reviewing relevant meeting minutes including those of the Conflicts Committee, Risk, Capital & Compliance 

Committee and Audit Committee and correspondence with regulatory authorities, including Lloyd’s of London and the 

Prudential Regulatory Authority. 

 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances 

of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the 

underwriting year financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than 

the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery 

or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. 

 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the underwriting year financial statements is located on the 

FRC’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report. 

 

Use of this report 

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the syndicate’s members as a body in accordance 

with part 2 of The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 and Part 

C of the Lloyd’s Syndicate Accounting Byelaw (No. 8 of 2005) and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these 

opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or 

into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. 
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Other required reporting 
Under The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 and the Lloyd’s 

Syndicate Accounting Byelaw (No. 8 of 2005), we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: 

 

• we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or  

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Managing Agent in respect of the syndicate; or 

• the underwriting year financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records. 

 

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. 

 

 

 

 

 

Matthew Nichols (Senior statutory auditor) 

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 

London 

3 March 2022 
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Profit and loss account: technical account - general business 

for the 36 months ended 31 December 2021 
 

 
Note 

2019 

£’000 

Syndicate allocated capacity  32,279 

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance   

Gross premiums written 3 16,712 

Outward reinsurance premiums  (2,192) 

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance  14,520 

   

Reinsurance to close premium receivable, net of reinsurance 4 12,141 

Allocated investment return transferred from the non-technical account  383 

Total technical income  27,044 

   

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance   

Claims paid:   

- Gross amount  (7,244) 

- Reinsurers’ share  33 

- Reinsurance to close premium payable, net of reinsurance 4 (16,832) 

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance  (24,043) 

   

Members’ standard personal expenses  (242) 

Net operating expenses 5,6 (2,245) 

Total technical charges  (26,530) 

    

Balance on the technical account for general business  514 

 

The notes to the underwriting year accounts and significant accounting policies form part of these underwriting year 

accounts. 
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Profit and loss account: non-technical account  

for the 36 months ended 31 December 2021 
 

 Note 
2019 

£’000 

Balance on the technical account for general business  514 

Investment income 8 475 

Unrealised losses on investments  (24) 

Investment expenses and charges 8 (68) 

Allocated investment return transferred to the general business technical 

account  (383) 

Non-technical foreign exchange gain  102 

Result before members’ agents fees  616 

Members’ agents fees advances  (132) 

Amounts due to members  484 

 

There is no other comprehensive income. Accordingly, a separate statement of other comprehensive income has not 

been provided. 

 

The notes to the underwriting year accounts and significant accounting policies form part of these underwriting year 

accounts. 
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Balance sheet for the 2019 closed year of account 

as at 31 December 2021 
 

 
Note 

2019 
£’000 

Assets   

Investments   

Other financial investments 9 5,545 

Deposits with ceding undertakings  4 

   

Debtors   

Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations   1,652 

Other debtors  8,795 

   

Reinsurance recoveries anticipated on gross reinsurance to close 
premium payable to close the account 4 14 

   

Other assets   

Cash at bank and in hand  3,643 

Overseas deposits  2 

Total assets  19,655 

Liabilities   

Amounts due to members  484 

   

Reinsurance to close premium payable to close the account - gross 
amount 4 16,846 

   

Creditors   

Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations   2,325 

   

Total liabilities  19,655 

 

The underwriting year accounts, which comprise the profit and loss: technical account - general business, profit and loss: 

non-technical account, balance sheet for the 2019 closed year of account and notes to the underwriting year accounts 

and significant accounting policies, were approved by the Board of Tokio Marine Kiln Syndicates Limited on 3 March 2022 

and were signed on its behalf by: 

 

 

 

 

R Patel 

Chief Financial Officer 

Tokio Marine Kiln Syndicates Limited 

3 March 2022 

 

The notes to the underwriting year accounts and significant accounting policies form part of these underwriting year 

accounts.  
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Notes to the underwriting year accounts and significant accounting 

policies 
 

1.   Accounting policies 

1.1  Statement of compliance 

These underwriting year accounts have been prepared in accordance with The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s 

Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008, Part C of the Lloyd’s Syndicate Accounting Byelaw (No. 8 of 2005) 

and Accounting Standards in the United Kingdom, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, ‘The Financial Reporting 

Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland’ (FRS 102) and Financial Reporting Standard 103, 

‘Insurance Contracts’ (FRS 103). 

 

These underwriting year accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the recognition of 

certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. 

 

These underwriting year accounts are presented in pounds sterling, which is the functional currency of the syndicate. All 

amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand pounds, unless otherwise stated. 

 

1.2  New standards and amendments  

The syndicate has applied FRS 102 and FRS 103, both as issued in March 2018, which reflects the amendments made as 

part of the Triennial Review 2017. FRS 102 is subject to a periodic review at least every five years. The first periodic 

review, the Triennial Review 2017, was completed in December 2017, with an effective date of 1 January 2019.   

 

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) commenced the second periodic review in March 2021. Publication of a Financial 

Reporting Exposure Draft (FRED) is expected during 2022. The proposed effective date of the amendments set out in the 

FRED will be determined taking into account the nature of the proposals and other relevant factors, but will not be earlier 

than 1 January 2025.  

 

There are no amendments to UK accounting standards impacting the 2019 year of account. 

 

1.3  Funds at Lloyd’s 

Every member is required to hold capital at Lloyd’s which is held in trust and is known as Funds at Lloyd’s (FAL). These 

funds are intended primarily to cover circumstances where syndicate assets prove insufficient to meet participating 

members’ underwriting liabilities. 

 

The level of FAL that Lloyd’s requires a member to maintain is determined by Lloyd’s based on PRA requirements and 

resource criteria. FAL has regard to a number of factors, including the nature and amount of risk to be underwritten by 

the member and the assessment of the reserving risk in respect of business that has been underwritten. Since FAL is not 

under the management of the managing agent, no amount has been shown in these underwriting year accounts by way 

of such capital resources. However, the managing agent is able to make a call on the members’ FAL to meet liquidity 

requirements or to settle losses. 

 

1.4  Going concern 

These underwriting year accounts relate to a closed underwriting year of account, matters relating to going concern are 

not relevant. The underwriting year accounts are prepared for and only for the syndicate’s members as a body in 

accordance with part 2 of The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 

and Part C of the Lloyd’s Syndicate Accounting Byelaw (No. 8 of 2005). 

 

1.5  Summary of accounting policies 

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the underwriting year accounts are set out below. They 

have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these underwriting year accounts. 

 

a. Product classification 

Insurance contracts are defined as those containing significant insurance risk at the inception of the contract, or those 

where at the inception of the contract there is a scenario with commercial substance where the level of insurance risk 

may be significant. The significance of insurance risk is dependent on both the probability of an insured event and the 

magnitude of its potential effect. 

 

b. Premiums written 

Inwards premiums written comprise premiums on contracts incepting during the financial year as well as adjustments 

made in the year to premiums on contracts incepting in prior accounting periods. The estimates are updated on a regular 

basis. The proportion of risks incepted at the year-end date are reported as written. Premiums are shown gross of 
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brokerage payable and exclude taxes and duties levied on them. Estimates are made for pipeline premiums on a risk-by-

risk basis, representing the difference between the written and signed premium, which is held on the balance sheet as an 

asset. 

 

Gross premiums are allocated to years of account on the basis of the inception date of the policy. Additional and return 

premiums follow the year of account of the original premium. Estimates are made for pipeline premiums, representing 

premiums written but not reported to the syndicate by the reporting date. 

 

Outwards reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same accounting period as the premiums for the related direct 

or inwards business being reinsured. 

 

c. Earned premiums 

Inwards and outwards earned premium represents the amount of written premium deemed to have been exposed to loss 

according to defined earnings patterns. The earning patterns are based primarily on time apportionment, with an 

adjustment for the risk profile of certain classes of business, particularly those exposed to seasonal weather-related 

events. The provision for unearned premium comprises the proportion of gross premiums written which is estimated to 

be earned after the balance sheet date. 

 

Reinstatement premiums arise on both inwards and outwards policies when a loss has been incurred on a policy and there 

is a clause which requires the reinstatement of the policy with the payment of a further premium by the policyholder. 

They are recognised as written and earned in full at the date of the event giving rise to the reinstatement premium. 

Outwards reinstatement premiums payable in the event of a claim being made are charged to the same year of account 

as that to which the recovery is credited. 

 

d. Claims paid and incurred 

Paid claims represent all claims paid during the year and include claims handling expenses. 

 

Claims incurred comprise paid claims and changes in the provisions for outstanding claims, including provisions for claims 

incurred but not reported (IBNR) and related expenses, together with any adjustments to claims from previous years. 

 

e. Claims provisions and related recoveries 

Gross claims incurred comprise the estimated cost of all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or not, 

including related direct and indirect claims handling costs and adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years. 

 

Provision is made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the balance sheet date, 

including outstanding claims estimated on a case-by-case basis and also the cost of claims Incurred But Not Reported 

(IBNR). The estimated cost of claims includes expenses to be incurred in settling claims. All reasonable steps are taken 

to ensure that the appropriate information regarding claims exposures is obtained. However, given the uncertainty in 

establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability 

established. All claims provisions are reported on an undiscounted basis. 

 

f. Provision for unexpired risks 

Provision is made for any deficiencies arising when unearned premiums, net of associated acquisition costs, are insufficient 

to meet expected claims and expenses after taking into account future investment return on the investments supporting 

the unearned premiums provision. The expected claims are calculated having regard only to events that have occurred 

prior to the balance sheet date. The need for an unexpired risks provision is assessed on a ‘managed together’ basis. 

Unexpired risks surpluses and deficits are offset where business classes are managed together and a provision is made if 

an aggregate deficit arises. The unexpired risks provision is included within other technical provisions. 

 

All reasonable steps are taken to ensure that the appropriate information regarding claims exposures is obtained. The 

calculation is based upon statistical analyses of historical experience, which assumes that the development pattern of 

premiums and claims will be similar to past experience. However, given the uncertainty in establishing a provision for 

unexpired risks, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability established. 

 

g. Net operating expenses and personal expenses 

Net operating expenses comprise the cost of acquiring business including commission and profit commission as well as 

the staff costs and other expenses attributable to underwriting operations. 

 

Commission and brokerage are charged to the year of account to which the relevant policy is allocated. 

 

Personal expenses comprise managing agent’s fee, Lloyd’s central fund contributions and Lloyd’s subscriptions. 

 



 

Tokio Marine Kiln Catastrophe Syndicate 557 Underwriting Year Accounts for the 2019 Year of Account 53 

Net operating expenses and personal expenses are recognised on the accruals basis and represent the expenses incurred 

on underwriting operations and also the reinsurance commission income. 

 

h. Finance costs 

Finance costs comprise interest paid and bank charges together with facility fees on letters of credit and are recorded in 

the period in which they are incurred. 

 

i. Acquisition costs 

Acquisition costs, comprising commission and other costs related to the acquisition of new insurance contracts are deferred 

to the extent that they are attributable to premiums unearned at the balance sheet date. Where inwards business is ceded 

to an outwards proportional reinsurance treaty, an estimate of the relevant proportion of the inwards acquisition costs is 

calculated and deferred in line with the outwards unearned premium at the balance sheet date. 

 

Deferred acquisition costs, representing the proportion of commission and other acquisition costs that relate to unearned 

premium on policies in force at the year-end, are charged over the period in which related premiums are earned. Deferred 

acquisition costs are reviewed by category of business at the end of each reporting period and are written off where they 

are no longer considered to be recoverable. 

 

j. Foreign currencies  

Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the underwriting year accounts are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 

in which the syndicate operate (the functional currency). The underwriting year accounts are presented in pounds sterling 

which is also the functional currency of the syndicate. 

 

Transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 

the transactions or an appropriate average rate of exchange. At each period end foreign currency monetary items are 

translated using the closing rate. For this purpose, all assets and liabilities arising from insurance contracts (including 

unearned premiums, deferred acquisition costs and unexpired risks provisions) are monetary items. 

 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the measurement at year-end 

exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the non-technical 

account. 

 

Exchange rates used are as follows: 

 2019 calendar 

year average 

2020 calendar 

year average 

2021 calendar 

year average 

Date of RITC 

US dollar 1.28 1.28 1.38 1.35 

Canadian dollar 1.69 1.72 1.72 1.71 

 

The distributable result on closing a year of account, usually at 36 months, is calculated using the exchange rates 

prevailing at the date of closure. 

 

k. Financial investments 

The syndicate has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102, “Basic Financial Instruments” and “Other Financial 

Instruments Issues”, respectively. 

 

Information relating to investments is reported to internal management on a fair value basis therefore all financial 

investments are designated at fair value through profit or loss at acquisition. These are initially recorded at cost, which 

equates fair value and subsequently carried at fair value through profit or loss. 

 

All regular purchases and sales of financial investments are recognised on the trade date, being the date the syndicate 

commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

 

Fair value determinations for financial investments are based on either bid market prices at close of business on the year-

end date for listed investments, broker or dealer price quotations, or by reference to current market values of another 

substantially similar instrument. 
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A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows expires or where they have been 

transferred and the syndicate has also substantially transferred all risks and rewards of ownership. A financial liability is 

derecognised once the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet only when there is a legally 

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 

assets and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

Equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose value cannot be measured reliably are subsequently measured 

at cost less impairment. 

 

l. Derivative financial instruments 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are 

subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Changes in the fair value are recognised immediately in the profit and loss 

account. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions. All 

derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

 

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the 

consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by comparison with other observable 

current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation 

technique whose variables include only data from observable markets. 

 

m. Debtors and creditors arising out of direct and reinsurance operations  

Debtors and creditors arising out of direct and reinsurance operations are initially recognised at transaction price and are 

subsequently carried at the recoverable amount. The carrying value of is reviewed for impairment whenever events or 

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount is greater than the recoverable amount, with the impairment adjustment 

recorded in the profit and loss. Debtors arising out of direct insurance and reinsurance operations are stated net of specific 

provisions against doubtful debts which are made on the basis of reviews conducted by management. 

 

n. Other debtors and creditors 

Any other debtors and creditors are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently carried at the recoverable 

amount. The carrying value of other debtors is reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that 

the carrying amount is greater than the recoverable amount, with the impairment adjustment recorded in the profit and 

loss account. All other debtors and creditors are due within one year, unless otherwise stated. 

 

o. Cash at bank and in hand 

Cash at bank and in hand include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid 

investments with original maturities of 24 hours or less. Bank overdrafts, when applicable, are shown within borrowings 

in current liabilities. These are measured at cost less any allowance for impairment. Cash and cash equivalents consist of 

cash at bank and in hand only. 

 

p. Overseas deposits 

Overseas deposits are lodged as a condition of conducting underwriting business in certain countries. These are measured 

at cost less any allowance for impairment and classified as other assets. 

 

q. Investment return 

Investment return comprises all investment income, realised investment gains and losses and movements in unrealised 

gains and losses, net of investment management expenses, including interest. Realised gains and losses on investments 

carried at fair value through profit or loss are calculated as the difference between sale proceeds and the fair value at the 

previous balance sheet date, or purchase price if acquired during the year. Unrealised gains and losses on investments 

represent the difference between the fair value at the balance sheet date and the fair value at the previous balance sheet 

date, or purchase price if acquired during the year. 

 

Investment return on general business is initially recorded in the non-technical account. A transfer is made from the non-

technical account to the general business technical account. Investment return has been wholly allocated to the technical 

account as all investments relate to the technical account. 

 

Investment return that is not specific to a year of account is allocated based on the proportion of the assets generating 

that return held by each year of account. 
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r. Investment yield 

The calendar year investment yield is calculated as the ratio of ‘aggregate investment return’ to ‘average funds available’, 

expressed as a percentage. Aggregate investment return is the total amount of net appreciation, investment income and 

accrued interest received during the year, after deducting investment management costs but before deducting tax. 

Average funds available is the average value of all investments (including accrued interest), deposits and surplus cash at 

the beginning of the year and at each quarter-end revalued at market prices. 

 

s. Taxation 

Under Schedule 19 of the Finance Act 1993 the syndicate does not pay UK taxation, its profits being allocated and assessed 

to tax on its members in direct proportion to their capacity. 

 

The syndicate pays various overseas direct and premium based taxes, the majority of which are allocable to its members 

in direct proportion to their capacity and which can be claimed by members either as double tax relief or as an expense 

against tax liabilities. 

 

t. Pension costs 

TMKS operates a defined contribution scheme. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which a fixed 

contribution is paid into a separate entity. Once the contributions have been paid TMKS has no further payment 

obligations. Pension contributions relating to syndicate staff are charged to the syndicate and included within net operating 

expenses. 

 

TMKS also operates a defined benefit scheme through the R J Kiln & Co. Limited Pension and Assurance Scheme (closed 

to future benefit accruals from 1 May 2003). This fund is valued at the balance sheet date by the scheme actuary. TMKS 

allocates a charge to the syndicate during the year which represents the syndicate’s yearly share of the obligated funding 

requirement of the scheme. 

 

u. Profit commission 

Profit commission is charged by the managing agent at a rate of 17.5% of profit subject to the operation of a two-year 

deficit clause. Final settlement to the managing agent is made when the year of account closes; normally at 36 months. 

Profit commission is estimated on an ultimate basis for each year of account and accrued by the syndicate based on the 

interim annual accounting results of the year of account under UK GAAP to the extent it is probable (more likely than not) 

that the syndicate will be required to transfer economic benefits in settlement. 

 

v. Provisions 

A provision is recognised when the syndicate has a present legal or constructive obligation, as a result of a past event, 

that is expected to result in an outflow of resources. A provision is recognised when a reliable estimate of the amount of 

the obligation can be made. 

 

w. Current and non-current disclosure 

For each asset and liability line item that combines amounts expected to be recovered or settled (a) no more than 12 

months after the year-end date and (b) more than 12 months after the year-end date, the relevant note discloses the 

amount expected to be recovered or settled after more than 12 months. 

 

x. Contingencies 

Contingent liabilities arise as a result of past events when either it is not probable that there will be an outflow of resources 

or that the amount cannot be reliably measured at the reporting date or when the existence will be confirmed by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future events not wholly within the syndicate’s control. Contingent liabilities 

are disclosed in the underwriting year accounts unless the probability of an outflow of resources is remote. 

 

y. Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet only when there is a legally 

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 

assets and settle the liability simultaneously. 
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2.   Use of critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies 

The preparation of the underwriting year accounts requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 

management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the syndicate’s accounting policies. The areas involving 

a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the underwriting 

accounts are those listed below. 

 

Incurred but 

not reported 

claims (IBNR) 

 

The estimation of claims IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the 

estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the syndicate, where more information 

about the claim event is generally available. In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims the 

syndicate uses a variety of estimation techniques, generally based upon statistical analyses of 

historical experience, which assumes that the development pattern of the current claims will be 

consistent with past experience. Allowance is made, however, for changes or uncertainties which 

may create distortions in the underlying statistics or which might cause the cost of unsettled claims 

to increase or reduce when compared with the cost of previously settled claims including: 

• changes in processes which might accelerate or slow down the development and/or recording 

of paid or incurred claims compared with the statistics from previous periods; 

• changes in the legal environment; 

• the effects of inflation; 

• changes in the mix of business; 

• the impact of large losses; and 

• movements in industry benchmarks. 

 

A component of these estimation techniques is usually the estimation of the cost of notified but not 

paid claims. In estimating the cost of these, regard is given to the claim circumstance as reported, 

any information available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with 

similar characteristics in previous periods. 

 

Large claims affecting each relevant business class are generally assessed separately, either 

measured on a case-by-case basis or projected separately, in order to allow for the possible distorting 

effect of the development and incidence of these large claims. 

 

Where possible, multiple techniques are adopted in order to estimate the required level of provisions. 

This assists in giving greater understanding of the trends inherent in the data being projected. The 

projections given by the various methodologies also assist in setting the range of possible outcomes. 

The most appropriate estimation technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the 

business class and the extent of the development of each accident year. The amount of salvage and 

subrogation recoveries is separately identified and, where material, reported as an asset. 

 

The Directors consider that the provisions for gross claims and related reinsurance recoveries are 

fairly stated on the basis of the information currently available to them. However, the ultimate liability 

will vary as a result of subsequent information and events and this may result in significant 

adjustments to the amounts provided. Adjustments to the amounts of claims provisions established 

in prior years are reflected in the report and accounts for the period in which the adjustments are 

made. The methods used, and the estimates made, are reviewed regularly. 

 

Provisions are calculated gross of any reinsurance recoveries. A separate estimate is made of the 

amounts that will be recoverable from reinsurers based upon the gross provisions and having due 

regard to collectability. An estimate of the future cost of indirect claims handling is calculated as a 

percentage of the claims reserves held at the balance sheet date. 

  

Reinsurance 

This business area is predominantly ‘short tail’, as there is not a significant delay between the 

occurrence of the claim and the claim being reported. For short tail risks, the costs of claims notified 

to the syndicate at the year-end date are estimated on a case-by-case basis to reflect the individual 

circumstances of each claim. The ultimate expected cost of claims is projected from this data by 

reference to statistics which show how estimates of claims incurred in previous periods have 

developed over time to reflect changes in the underlying estimates of the cost of notified claims and 

late notifications. For liability risks, claims may not become apparent for many years after the event 

giving rise to the claim has happened, and there will typically be greater variation between initial 

estimates and final outcomes compared with other classes. Differences between the estimated cost 

and subsequent re-estimation or settlement of claims are reflected in the technical account for the 

year in which these claims are re-estimated or settled. 



 

Tokio Marine Kiln Catastrophe Syndicate 557 Underwriting Year Accounts for the 2019 Year of Account 57 

COVID-19 

The Directors are aware of the heightened estimation uncertainty in reserving for COVID-19 

estimated losses, exacerbated by the ongoing nature of the event. Management have a robust 

reserving approach and carried out detailed analyses to corroborate the held reserves at the year-

end date. 

 

Written 

premium 

Pipeline 

premium 

Written premium is reported according to management estimation of when premium will be written. 

 

An estimate of premiums written during the year that have not yet been notified by the financial 

year-end ‘pipeline premiums’ is made on a risk-by-risk basis. The pipeline premium is booked as 

written and an assessment is made of the related unearned premium provision and an estimate of 

claims incurred but not reported in respect of the earned element. 

 

For delegated authority business the underwriters estimate how much business will attach to a facility 

based on information provided by the broker, using the underwriters’ experience with reference to 

the trading conditions of the market. This estimate is updated on a regular basis. It is assumed that 

risks attaching to the master facility incept evenly across the period of the facility and therefore only 

the proportion of risks which have incepted to the master facility by the year-end date are reported 

within written premium in these report and accounts. 

 

Provision for 

unexpired 

risks 

All reasonable steps are taken to ensure that the appropriate information regarding claims exposures 

is obtained. The calculation is based upon statistical analyses of historical experience, which assumes 

that the development pattern of premium and claims will be similar to past experience. However, 

given the uncertainty in establishing a provision for unexpired risks, it is likely that the final outcome 

will prove to be different from the original liability established. 

 

Reinsurance 

recoverable 

Reinsurance is deemed to be fully recoverable unless there is reason to doubt to its recoverability. 

In these circumstances specific provisions are made based on the expected proportional recovery 

and the credit risk profile of the counterparties. 

 

Financial 

investments 

Financial investments are carried in the balance sheet at fair value. Market valuations of funds are 

obtained from fund administrators. The fair value of financial instruments where no active market 

exists or where quoted prices are not otherwise available is determined by using valuation 

techniques. 

 

 

3.   Segmental analysis 

All business written by the syndicate is reinsurance. All business was concluded in the UK. 

 

4.   Reinsurance to close premium 
 

 
Reported 

£’000 

IBNR 

£’000 

 Total 

£’000 

Reinsurance to close premium receivable, net of 

reinsurance 
  

 
 

Gross reinsurance to close premium receivable 7,314 4,963  12,277 

Reinsurance recoveries anticipated (36) (100)  (136) 

 7,278 4,863  12,141 

Reinsurance to close premium payable, net of reinsurance     

Gross reinsurance to close premium payable 5,653 11,193  16,846 

Reinsurance recoveries anticipated (5) (9)  (14) 

 5,648 11,184  16,832 

 

The reinsurance to close is effected to the 2020 year of account of Syndicate 557. 
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5.   Net operating expenses 

 £’000 

Acquisition costs 361 

Acquisition costs - other 183 

Administrative expenses 1,701 

 2,245 

 

Auditors’ remuneration 

 £’000 

Fees payable to the syndicate’s auditor for the audit of the syndicate accounts 41 

Other services pursuant to legislation 60 

All other services 24 

 125 

 

The charge incurred for other services pursuant to legislation relates to the audit and review of the syndicate’s regulatory 

returns. The charge incurred for all other services relates to the provision of statement of actuarial opinion on the reserves. 

 

Audit fees are billed combined for the TMK Group and the syndicate and are paid by a fellow subsidiary of TMKGL. Audit 

fees are recharged to the syndicate. 

 

6.   Staff costs 

The syndicate and its managing agent have no employees. Staff were employed by Tokio Marine Kiln Insurance Services 

Limited. The following amounts were recharged to the 2019 year of account in respect of salary costs and are included 

within administrative expenses: 
 

£’000 

Wages and salaries 680 

Social security costs and pension costs 224 

 904 

 

7.   Analysis of technical result 

 2018 & prior 2019  Total 

 £’000 £’000  £’000 

Technical account balance excluding investment return 

and operating expenses 1,332 1,286  2,618 

Brokerage and commission on gross premium (3) (358)   (361) 

 1,329 928   2,257 
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8.   Investment return 
 

£’000 

Investment income  

Income from investments 431 

Realised gains on investments 44 

 475 

Investment expenses and charges  

Investment management expenses, including interest (28) 

Realised losses on investments (40) 

 (68) 

 

Investment return for the 2019 year of account is recognised in the 2019, 2020 and 2021 calendar years. The investment 

income and yield for these calendar years is disclosed in the investment return notes in each of the respective syndicate 

annual accounts. 

 

9.   Other financial investments 

 Fair value Purchase price 

 £’000 £’000 

Other financial Investments   

Shares and other variable yield securities 159 162 

Debt securities and other fixed income securities 5,386 5,434 

  5,545 5,596 

 

10.   Off-balance sheet items 

The syndicate has not been party to an arrangement, which is not reflected in its balance sheet, where material risks and 

benefits arise for the syndicate. 

 

11.   Post balance sheet events 

There are no post balance sheet events to report. 
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Seven-year summary (unaudited) 
 

 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Syndicate allocated capacity £’000 45,820 39,280 34,710 34,710 34,060 34,630 32,279 

Number of underwriting members 932 810 770 818 801 724 660 

Aggregate gross premiums £’000 30,409 24,726 18,786 17,272 16,668 15,115 16,351 

– as a percentage of allocated capacity 

% 66 63 54 50 49 44 51 

Result £’000 7,020 10,770 10,440 8,900 (4,996) 1,024 616 

– as a percentage of allocated capacity 

% 15 27 30 26 (15) 3 2 

        

Results for an illustrative share of £10,000        

Gross premiums £ 6,637 6,295 5,387 4,976 4,894 4,365 5,066 

Net premiums £ 5,488 5,453 4,722 4,321 4,312 3,806 4,386 

Net claims incurred £ (3,118) (2,534) (300) (625) (5,381) (3,105) (3,688) 

Administrative expense £ (437) (414) (567) (594) (514) (510) (584) 

Underwriting result £ 1,933 2,505 3,855 3,102 (1,583) 191 114 

Profit/(loss) on exchange £ (72) 794 (270) (10) (28) (46) 32 

Interest return £ 70 99 118 92 221 225 119 

Personal expenses £ (399) (656) (709) (619) (75) (75) (75) 

Result before members’ agents fees £ 1,532 2,742 2,994 2,565 (1,465) 295 190 

 

The seven-year summary has been prepared from the audited underwriting year accounts. Gross premiums are stated net of acquisition costs (but before acquisition costs – 

other). Net premiums are stated after acquisition costs and reinsurance commissions receivable. Net claims incurred includes reinsurance to close premiums. Investment 

expenses for all years of account have been deducted from investment return and are not included in syndicate operating expenses. Personal expenses are at the amount 

which would be incurred pro rata by individual Names writing the premium income in the syndicate irrespective of any minimum charge applicable. Corporate members may 

be charged at different rates. Foreign tax, which may be treated as a credit for personal tax purposes has been excluded. Where necessary, the results have been adjusted 

to comply with the current underwriting year accounting policies of the syndicate.  The adjustments arising are not material and have not been separately disclosed. 

 


